UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20549

Form 10-K

(Mark One)
E ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2022
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from o
Commission file number 000-30415

Zivo Bioscience, Inc.
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in 1is charter)

Nevada 7-0699977
{State or other jurisdiction of incorporation o organization) (IRS Employer ldentification No.)
21 East Long Lake Road, Suite 100 B field Hills, M1 48304
{Address of prncipal executive offices) {Zp Code)
(248) 452 9866

(Registrani’s telephone number, including area code)
Secarities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Trading Symbolis) Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock. $0.001 par value per share LIVD The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC
Warranis to Purchase Common Stock, ZIVOW The Nasdag Stock Market LLC

$0.001 par value per share
Securities registered pursuant o Scction 12(g) of the Act: None.
Indicate by check mark if the registran is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes 0 No &
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required 1o file repors pursuant to Section |3 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes 0 No [@

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Secunities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months {or for such shorier period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has
been subject 1o such filing requirements for the past %0 days. Yes 5 No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted clectronically every Interactivie Data File required 1o be submitted pursuant to
Rusle 405 of Regulation 5-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to submit such files), Yes & No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting
company, or an emerging growth company, See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting
company,” and “emcrging growth company™ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act,

Large accelerated filer ] Accelerated filer m
Nomn-aceelerated Filer = Smaller reporting company =
Emerging growth company 0O

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has clected not to use the extended transition period for
complying with any new or revised financial sccounting standards provided pursuant to Scction 13(a) of the Exchange Act. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed a repost on and atiestation to its cment’s assessment of the effectiveness of its
intemal control over financial reporting under Scction 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (15 US.C, 7262(b)) by the registered public
accounting firm that prepared or issued its audit report. 0

IT securities are regisiered pursuani to Section 12(b) of the Act, indicate by check mark whether the financial statements of the regisirant

included in the filing reflect the correction of an error to previously issued financial statements, T
Indicate by check mark whether any of those crmor corrections are restatements that required a recovery analysis of incentive-bascd
compensation received by any of the registrant’s executive officers during the relevam recovery period pursuant to § 240.10D-1(k). O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 ol the Act). Yes O No &

As of June 30, 2022, the last business day of the registrant’s most recenily completed second fiscal quarter, the aggregate market value of
shares of the registrant’s comumon stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant based upon the June 30, 2022 price at which the common
equity was last sold was approximately 5283 million. The number of outstanding shares of the registrant’s common stock as of March |,
2023 was 9,419,660,

Documenis Incorporated by Reference
Porions of the proxy statement for the 2023 annual meeting of shareholders are incorporated by reference into Pan 111 of this Annual
Repor o the extent described herein.




PART L
Ttem 1.
Tiem 1A,
Item IB.
Tiem 2.
Ttem 3.
Ttem 4.
PART 1L

Ttem 5.

ltem 6.
Ttem 7.
Ttem TA.
Ttem 8.
liem 9.
Item 2A.
Item 9B.
Tiem 9C.
PART M.
Trem 10,
Trem 11,

Item 12,

ltem 13,
Ttem 14,
PART IV,
ftem 15,

Ttem 16,

FORM 10-K
ZIVO BIOSCIENCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES INDEX

Business
Risk Factors

Unresolved SIIT COMMIETIS ...vvvecvosserariar resremsas s srasrsss ion12m s s rrasas s s sr s em s ems s s s e s s s s g e
TEBEAL PIOGBORIN. o1 10e 10 e s s matntomb i i iy i g i AR S SR K e 0
I By DR b o T S S

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity. Related Stockholder Maners and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securilies

Management's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk ...

Financial Statements and Supplementany DRt . ..o s s s s

Changes m and Disag) with Ace on A ing and Francial Disclosure

Contnols Bd PrOCOIUITS .......coissineariarsansisronras s siesasrsniseiss anras s assastssrs s s s s s spastesrassissian s osrasssass

Disclosure Regarding Forcign Jurisdictions that Prevent INSpeotions ... oo

Directors, Exccutive OfMicers and Comporate GOVEMIBITE ..o i iiriasias sttt st etsstsans mssmsansass

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
217 e [ L U £ 5ok A AP o S R M SRR e TR 1Sl S LR 0 ST

Cerlain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Principal Accountant Fees anmd ServiTes .. i i aeias s st inisns s s s s cos st sassss s as s bamsamsas s os

Exhibits and Finuncial Staterment Schedules

7
37

7
7
7

7
39




CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Sonre of che statements comtomned in this Anmua! Report ore forward-dooking statements within the meaning of Section
274 of the Securities Act af 1933, ax amended (the “Securities Aer”), and Secrion 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended fthe “Exchange Aet”). These statements imvolve imown and wiknown risks, incertainties and other
Joctors which may cause our or our mdustry's actual resules, performance or achievemenss to be marerially different
Sron: ary futire resilts, pevformance or achievements exprezied or implied by the forward-looking statenents. Forward-
loaking statements inclhude, but are not limited to statements regarding:

= our ability to continue as a going concern and our history of losses;

& pur ability to obtain additional financing:

. aur relatively new business model and lack of revenues:;

*  our ability to prosecute, maintain or enforee our intellectual property rights;

= disputes or other developments relating to proprictary rights and claims of infringement;

s the accuracy of our estimates regarding expenses, futire revenues and capital requirements;

= the implementation of our business model and strategec plans for our business and technology;

. the suceessful development of our production capabilities;

= the successful development of our sales and marketing capabilities;

s the potential markets for our products and our ability to serve those markets;

®  the rate and degree of market acceptance of our products and any future products;

»  our ability to retain key management personnel;

»  regulatory developments and our compliance with applicable laws; and

s our liguidity.
In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “would,”
“expects,” “plans,” “anticipates.” “belicves,” “estimales,” “projects,” “predicts,” “potential,” “targets,” “intends,” and
similar expressions intended to identify forward looking statements. These statements are only predictions and involve
known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity,
performance, or achicvements to be matenally different from any future resulis, levels of activity, performance, or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Given these uncertaintics, you should not place
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, Also, these forward-fooking statements represent our estimates and
assumiptions only as of the date of this report. Except as otherwise required by law, we expressly disclaim any obligation
or undertaking 1o release publicly any updates or revistons to any forward-looking statement contained in this report to

reflect any change in our expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any of our forward-
looking statements are based. We qualify all of our forward-looking statements by these cautionary statemenis,

You should refer to the section entitled “Risk Factors™ this Annual Repont for a discussion of important factors that may
cause our actual results to differ materially from these expressed or implicd by our forward-looking statements. As a
result of these factors, we cannot assure you that the forward-looking statements in this Annual Report will prove to be
accurite.




PARTI
Item 1. Business.

Unlezs we state otherwize or the context otherwize requires, references in this Avmnal Report on Form 10-K to "we ™
“onr,” “ng,” "ZIVO,” “the Regisram” or “the Company " rafer to Zve Bloscience, Inc., o Nevada corporation, and its
subsidiaries.

Overview

We are a research and development company operating in both the biotech and aglech sectors, with an
intellectual property portfelio comprised of proprietary algal and bactenial strains, biologically active molecules and
complexes, production technigues, cultivation technigues and patented or patent-pending inventions for applications in
human and animal health.

We belicve that our proprictary algal culture and matenials derived therefrom show promise in benefiting both
animal and human health, primarily through inflammation-modulating and immune-boosting propertics. Overall, our
efforts have been centered around two potential value-creating initiatives: the first being the idemtification of bisactive
extracts or novel bisactive molecules from our proprictary algal culture to treat various discases, and second, the
utilization of our proprictary algal culture in its whole form as a food product to leverage its nutnitional value. In the first
quarter of 2022, we reformulated our biotech and agtech businesses around these two concepts. We reviewed the market
potential (scale and profit) and the technical and busi risks associated with cach of the opportunitics we had been
waorking on and developed a focused sirategy for cach business.

Biotech Business Strategy

We are seeking 1o pariner with established animal health companies and ereate valee through licensing or other
commercial mrangements, while aceclerating final product development and mitigating market mtroduction risk,

Review of solated active matenals derived from our proprictary algal culivre and their polential treatment
applications led us to identify a product candidate for treating coccidiosis in broiler chickens as the best option for most
rapidly generating significant revenue because coccidiosis is a global poultry industry issue costing chicken farmers
between 3813 billion annually, and because the clinical testing cvecle for chickens is shorter than for other species. Most
of the global animal health companies have preducts for the coceidiosis market; however, they are mostly antibiotic- or
ionophone-hased with essentially no new technology having been introduced in the last 60 years,

Coccidiozis Produet Condidate

P

In numerous prior studics, ZIVO has de d multiple b meluding:

*  Minimized or eliminated ihe negative effects of coccidiesis on the digestive health in broiler chickens by
numerous measures of gut health and overall well-being;

*  Reduced the incidence of Campylobacier, Salmonella, E. coli, and Clostridium perfringens, all significant
sources of food-borme illness, in the digestive tract of broiler chickens in the absence of antibiotics or other
antimicrobial compounds; and

& Reduced momality.

The predominant treatment for coceidiosis in the poultry industry, in-feed anticoccidial drugs, target the Eimeria
parasite directly and require constant use over the lifespan of the amimal for efficacy and can over time result in the
development of resistant Eimenia strains. (ther treatment strategics, such as vaccines, require several weeks for
immunity 1o manifest, which can significantly impact growth potential. Often, several treatment products are used in
combination, increasing costs in an industry already facing heavy inflationary pressures, As a result, the poultry industry
is actively searching for a novel solution.

Our treatment alternative represents an innovafive new product class that aims to sirengthen the immune system
of chickens through muliiple complementary immune pathways to afford a rapid, robust, and effective response to
discasc-causing pathogens without the adverse cffects associated with traditional antimscrobial drugs and chemicals,




Agtech Business Strategy

For the agtech side of our business, we have developed our proprictary algal culture 1o be commercially viable
as a nutritional product. The powdered form contains approximately 45% protein, is an excellent source of other essential
nuinents, and is nearly completely odorless and 1asteless unlike other algal producis. As we reviewed our aglech business
carly this vear, we were very satisfied with the nature of the product; however, we identified gaps in customer acquisilion
and in scale-up technology preventing us from growing our proprictary algae in guantities to sufficiently mect the
poiential demand. We have, therefore, focused our agiech sirategy on developing a cost eflective, commercial-scale
growing technology.

In 2021, we began funding a development agreement with Grupo Alimenta, & well-established Peruvian
agriculure company. Our focus is now on scaling up for commercial production. The Alimenta-ZIVO team has been
working toward building commercial-scale algae ponds using a ZIVO proprictary design, and we arc in the middle of a
project to grow our algae in a penultimate scale pond.

Given the Sclf Affirmed GRAS (Generally Recognized as Safe) status for our dricd whole algal biomass
product, we intend to work with partners and wholesale buyers with the goal to generate revenue m 2023,

Today's algae industry is antizsanal and fragmented. There is no major source that can deliver to national brands
and co-packers consistent quality and quantity of dried algae, and we aim 1o fill that market need with our proprictary

algae,
Additional Indications

Pending additional funding, ZIVO may also pursuc the following indications:
Bintech:

o Bovine Mastits: ZIVO is developing a reatment, for bovine mastitis based on previous successful proof
of concept studies and derived from its proprietary algal culture and the bioactive agents contained within.

¢ Canine Joint Health: Studics have indicated the potential of a chondroprotective property when a
compound fraction from ZIVO's algal culture was introduced into €x vive canine joint tissues,

o  Human Immune Modulatlon: Early human imanune cell br vitre and in vive studies have indicated that
one of the isolated and characterized biologically active molecules in the Company’s portfolio may serve
as an immune medulator with potential application in multiple disease situations.

Agitech:

o Human Food Ingredient: The self-alfirmed GRAS process was completed for ZIVO algal biomass in late
2018 o validate its suitability for human consumplion as an ingredient in foods and beverages.

o Skin Health: ZIVO 15 developing its algal biomass as a skin health ingredient, with topical skin product
testing started in the third quarter of 2020, and clinical efficacy claim studics planned for ingestible and
wopical products,

Our Market Opportunity
Biotech
Livestock and Comparion Animal Health

The annual market sizes for vaccines, phytogenics and eubiotics in the animal health market as a whole were
approximately $9.2 billion in 2020, $753.0 million in 2020, and $3.9 billion in 2019, respectively. During the same time
period, the annual market sizes for drugs, vaccines & feed additives and supplements in the companion anmmal market
were approximately $1 1.8 billion in 2020 and $637.6 million in 2019, respectively.

Pouliry Gut Health

Coceidiosis, or the inflammation of the intestinal tract, is onc of the largest health and animal welfare problems
facing poultry flocks, Consumer and regulatory pressure have ercated what we believe to be an opportunity to develop
and market an alternative to various additives routinely mixed into chicken feed. The Company is developing a product
candidate designed to boost immune response, thereby combatting a broad range of infective pathogens, with the goal of
simultancously improving fecd conversion and productivity.
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Bovire Maztirls

Beovine mastitis, or inflammation of the udder, can halt milk production and may result in unsileable milk. The
U.S. cow herd averaged 9.4 million cows in 2018 and U.5. milk production hit 217.6 billion pounds in 2018, Bovine
mastitis affects approximately 1.5 million out of the 9 million dairy cows in the L.5. on an annual basis. and the average
loss per cow per year in milk output is $46 pounds, Current treatments are primarily antibiotic, which requires a holding
period and disposal of milk during that holding period.

Canine Joint Health

Osteoarthnitis (OA) is one of the most commeon ailments among pet dogs, with prevalence believed 1o be greater
than 20%. The LLS. is expected 1o hold the largest share of the global market for veterinary pain management due to the
vast pet population in the region, increasing animal healthcare expenditure, large number of hospitals and clinics,
growing pool of velerinarians, and high prevalence of discases causing pain. According to IBISWorld, the US,
veterinary services market showed a solid, steady increase in consumer spending over the past fow years,

Human Immune Modification

Tmmune-related and infectious diseases represent a vast range of health issues affecting millions of humans,
New applications in pharma, food and nutraccuticals are continually introduced into this growing market. The annual
markel sizes for the antibiotics, eubiotics, auteimmune, and the antidisbetic markets were approximately $40.0 billion in
2020, $37.9 billion in 2009, S$110.0 billion in 2017 and $45.8 billion in 2018, respectively. Bevond arthritis, there are
more than 80 types of clinically different autoimmune discases. Many major pharmaccutical and biopharmaceutical
companics have extensive licensing and development programs focused on autoimmunc/anti-inflammatery R&ED. The
ris¢ in strategic alliances by discovery stage R&D companics like ZIVO is one of the latest trends that may gain traction
in the autoimmune and anti-inflammatory therapeutics market in the coming vears,

Agtech
Hinnan Fiunctional Feod Ingradients

The market for healthy foads, health foods, vegan and vegetarian food products continues to gain traction in the US and
waorldwide, cspecially as consumers look for healthful and nutritional ingredients to improve overall health and immune
response. The drive wward plani-based proteins and microbiome-enhancing notural foods and foodbeverage ingredients
and dietary supplements continues to expand.

Clinical Development and Regulatory Pathway
Clisical Experience, Funire Developmant and Clivical Trial Plans

Our product candidates are at different stages of development for different applications. Accordingly, the
various regulatory processes required for the various applications are at different stages of completion. With respect to
human food and beverage applications, we have completed the FDA's self-affirmed GRAS process for our dricd algal
biomass which allows for product commercialization with a consumpiion limit of up to nine grams per day.

Beyond use of the dned algal biomass in human food and beverage in the US. with nuintional claims, ZIV0
has not vet received the required approvals for commercialization for any product form or application. Te date, however,
we have performed a number of studies required by regulatory bodies including bench top and pre-clinical rests (which
include animal testing, performance, and other tests) for various product forms and applications pertinent to qualified
health claims and structure function claims. As described below, the Company intends 1o perform additional testing of its
products in connection with obtaining the requisite regulatory approvals,

Poultry Gut Health

We are actively developing a product candidate targeting poultry gut health, We have conducted 21 clinical
trials to date, most recently in the first half of 2022, The early studies focused on determining the general effects of
various preduct candidates, while the more recent studies have been focused on optimizing a single lead product
candidate including sdy of dogage levels, interactions with vaccines and various product fornmlations.

In late 2022, a third party performed a four-momhb study on behalf of a potential panner company, which
mecluded 2 42-day coccidiosis trial in broiler chickens. That study evaluating the Company s novel immune-modulating
biologic for treating coccidiosis in broiler chickens produced quesitonable results due to a high disease burden among
tcfgcdnc;ickem The Company has alrcady begun the process o conduct a new study that it expects to be compleied by
mund-2023,




ZIVO's approach for developing our cocowdiosis product candidate as feed additives enables us 1o generaie
products that boost the immune response and reduce the effects of disease, while mamtaining a single regulatory
relationship, which is with the U.S. Depantment of Agriculture (USDA),

We recently announced receipl of a letter from the USDA's Center for Vetennary Biologics (CVB) affimung
that the agency has claimed jurisdiction for reviewing our immune-modulating biologic for treating coccidiosis in broiler
chickens. This imporiant jurisdictional announcement de-risks our regulatory path and opens the door o further
discussions with the CVB on the final product development plan, regulatory sirategy, and dala requirements for
licensure. This was a significant milestone as USDA approval is likely to provide o favorable timeline to approval

relative 1o the altemative involving the FIDA,

Porential Additional Indiearionz

Following development of our initial product candidate for pouliry gui health. the Company intends to continue
to pursuc the below indications:

Biorech:
Stage of Development and/or
Product Regulatory Status to Date Mexl Steps
Bovine Mastitis  The Company has conducted multiple in vifro  The Company expects to conduct three or more

and ex vive experiments as well as four clinical
wals o determine  general effects and to
evaluate product modalities and methods of
administration,

These studies include two (2) multianalyte
vive studics of mastitis-inducing  pathogens,
most recently staph anrens.

Discovery Stage, pre-GMP, pre-GLP

small smudics o validate a product candidate
previously validated in pouliry, among other
similar candidates and to make refinements to
same before offering to potential licensees.

Canine Joint
Health

The Company has conducted multiple in vifro
inflammatory experiments, followed by two in
vive trials with mice, and two ex vive
experiments using canine hip jomnt ssue.

Discovery Stage, pre.GAMF, pre-GLP

Additional ex vive experiments are necessary 1o
gauge effectivenesz of product candidate, 10 be
followed by two i vive studies to determine
desage and tolerance, likely followed by one or
more validation studies on behalf of prospective
licensees,

The Company has conducted six i vifre

The Company has additional testing planned,

Muodulation experimenis  using  human immune  cclls  beginning with repeated i vifre testing of
attenuated by proprictary TLRS inhibitor. different dosages and puniics.

Agtech:

Algal biomass The Company has completed the self-affirmed Commercial launch 15 in process. Product can be

for human GRAS status process (November 2018). marketed immediately.

consumption
Mo clinical testing s required  for Additional studics are contemplated to expand
commencialization. the allowable daily intake (ADI} and obtain an

FDA No Questions letter.

Biomass for The Company is planning several investigations  The Company is planning additional studics to

supporting skin  to establish definitive support for the mechanism  support skin health/anti-aging.

health / anti- of action associated with skin health / anti-aging.

aging Support for the indication is a prerequisite o the  Pending the outcome of these tests, we expect to

human new dictary ingredient (NDI) application.

Topical skin product testing began m 2020,

notify the Food and Drug Administration about
these ngredients and our mient fo markel
according to Section 413(d) of the FDMC Act,
21 U.8.C. 350bid).




Competition and Functional Equivalents
Biotech

Owir industries are all very competitive and subject 1o rapid and significant mnovation and change. In addition to
companies cullivating and creating homeopathic and natural remedies, our potential competitors and functional
equivalents include large pharmaceutical and biopharmaceutical companies, specialty pharmaceutical and genenic drug
companies, academic mnstilulions, governmeni agencies and research instifutions. Key competitive factors allecting our
producis” commercial success wall include efficacy, safety, tolerability, reliability and price.

Pouftry Guf Health: Conventional poultry production typically invelves the use of ionophores and other
anticoccidial compounds, some of which are produced by HuvelPharma, Elanco, Zoetis, and Phibro, among others. No
Antibiotics Ever (NAE) poultry production, relies on effective and economically sound aliermatives, such as vaccines and
antimicrobial chemicals, as well as product candidates offered by ZIVO.

Bovine Mastifiz: Branded antibiotic solations include ToDay™ and Masti-Clear; homeopathic solutions include
Amoxi-Mast™; topical and salve solutions include Germicidal teat dips, Fight Bac™ wat disinfectant spray, and
Sterosol™ Pre/Post Teal Dip. Vaccine and antimicrobial solutions include Lysigin and Spectramast LC™,

Canine Joirnt Health: The global veterinary pain management drugs market is segmented into epioids, agonists,
local anestheties, NSAIDs (Non-steroidal Ann-Inflammatory Drugs), Disease-modifying Osteoarihniis Drugs (DMOAD)
and others. The key plavers of the global veterinary pain management drugs market are Bochringer Ingelheim, Zoctis,
Inc., Merck Animal Health, Elanco, Baver AG, Vetoquinol S.A. Ceva Sante Animale, Virbac Group, Norbrook
Laboratories Lid, and Dechra Pharmaceuticals.

Humar Inmnine Modulation: Several companies have TLRS inhibitors curremly in development. Eritoran {Eisai
Research Institute of Boston, Andover, MA) and Resatorvid (TAK-242; Takeda Pharmaceutical Company) appear 1o be
the lead candid: Their hanism of action (MOA] is cited as inhibition of the production of lipopolysacchanide
(LIS )-induced inflammatory mediators by binding to the mtracellular domain of TLR4, Eritoran has reached the clinical
trial stage.

Agtech:

Humearr Food Ingredient: We believe that our primary competition will come from innovators i food
technology such as DSM, Cognis, ConAgra, Cargill and Mestle, each of which has active M&A efforts, a large scientific
staff and a generous R&D budget (o develop supplements and ingredienis for a wide range of applications.

Skin Health & Amii-Aging: There are a multitude of topical tr and dictary supplements marketed for
skin health and/or anti-aging applications, including premium multi-collagen peplides capsules such as, Well Roots
Biotin Rich Plus Collagen, Heliocare Skin Care Dietary Supplement, CoQ10 Supplement. Vitamin C. Peplan®,
Vertsol &, and Pure Gold Collagen®.

Maierial Agreemenis
Zoeris CollaborationOption Agreement

On December 20, 2013, the Company entered into a collaboration, confidentiality and option agreement with
Zoetis (as amended from time 1o time, the “Zoetis Agreement”), formerly Plizer Amimal Health, and the world’s largest
animal health company, pursuant to which the Company is conducting bovine masiitis research.

Under the Zoehis Agreemen, the Company granied Zoetis an exclusive oplion 1o negotiate an exclusive license
with the Company for Company proprictary technology for bovine mastitis, including its identified and characterized
natural moleeule and its synthetic fany acid/polysacchanide complex, and derivativeshomologs/isomers thereof, and
production of the same (the “Technology”). The Company is required 1o excoute a study under the supervision of Zoctis,
the results of which will be used by Zoetis to evaluate whether or not to exercise its option. Within 90 days of its receipt
of results, Zoctis must notify the Company whether or not it wishes o scoure an exclusive license, and the negotiation of
such license and payment terms will be made at that me.

The Zoctis Agreememt has been extended through seven amendments, with the cument term sct to expire on
Janary 30, 2023,




Nutri@uest Collaborative Marketing Agreement

In April 2007, the Company entered into @ limited license agreement with animal nutrition innovater NutrniQuest
(the “NutriQuest Agreement™), which holds feed formulation comtracts with Tyson, Purdue. Smithficld and other large
poultry and pork processors around the world, Poultry feed testing has showa that the Company”s proprietary algal sirain
may be a natural immune modulator thal may enter the market as a natural products of phytogenic feed ingredient,
providing the No Antibiotics Ever ("NAE") producers with a non-medicated feed aliemative.

Under the NuinCuest Agreement, ZIVO granted 1o NutnQuesi a imited, exclusive license o market, disinbuie
sell and collect the sales proceeds in all ZIVO's nutrition, feed additive and supplementation applications naturally-
derived algal biomass and extraction products (collectively the “Products™) for ol administration in pouliry and swine,
The Products were 10 be sold under the NulriQuest brand, with loges and packaging chosen by NutriQuest, with
NutriQuest marketing, distributing and collecting revenues from sales of the Products. The parties were to equally share
the gross profit

Additionally, if ZIVO had licensed its intellectual property to another party i the animal nutntion market (a
“Competitive Product™), NutriQuest had the right to excrcise cither of the following two options: Market Adjustment
Option: ZIVO would pay NutriQuest a market adjustment that is equal to 15% of the gross profit carned by ZIVO on the
Competitive Product; and Put Option: NutriQuest had an option to terminate the NutriCQuest Agreement and require
ZIVO to pay NutriQuest a termination fee equal to three times NutriQest’s $0% portion of the highest annualized gross
profit achieved by NutiQuest i any 12 consecutive month period from inception of sales pursuant to the NutriQuest
Agreement.

On May 1. 2022, the Company acknowledged that the NuiriQuest Agreement was terminated pursuant 1o its
terms.,

NutriCliipz Supply Agresinent

In June 2008, ZIVO entered into an exclusive US-only supply agreement with MutriChipz (the “NutriChipz
Agreement”), which provided an exclusive heense o NutnChipz to supply our algae as an ingredient in chips and crisps.
Under the NutriChipz Agreement, Mutrichipz was to pay ZIVO an amount cqual to 130% of the dircet cost of ZIV algal
biomass a1 a US port of entry: provided, however, that such cost were not 1o exceed $15.000 per metric ton. The
NutriChipz Agreement had a term of five years, subject 1o up o two additional two-year terms al the election of
NutriChipz. However, if at any point after the date that was 12 menths fellowing the first delivery by ZIVO of two tons
of its product to Nutrichipz at an average price per ton of no more than $8 000, Nutrichipz failed to purchase at monthly
cunulative average of al least 10 tons of product, then ZIVO would be released from the exclusivity obligaiions.
Additionally, cither party was able to terminate the NuwnChipz Agreement if the other panty breached the Nutrichipz
Agreement. and did not cure such breach within 90 days, or upon centain insolvency, bankruptey cvents of the other
panty,

On September 28, 2022, the NutriChipe Agreement was terminated by the parties. Upon termination of the
NutriChipz Agreement, ZIVO granted MNuinChipe a four (4) year right of first refusal (“NuiriChipzROFR™)
{commencing on September 28, 2022) should ZIVO (or its affiliate or subsidiary) intend to sell its algae biomass to an
unrelated party in an arm’s length transaction as an ingredient for human consumption in any of the following:

(1} A savory snack food in the form of a crisp, Mat, or slightly bowl shaped, bite-sized unit that has been cither
deep fried, baked, or air fried until crunchy; or

(1) A fresh, perishable Dexible, non-leavencd flatbread marketed for use as a sandwich wrap,

MutriChipe must exercize the NutriChipe ROFR within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of the above. 1f
NutriChipz timely exercises the NutriChipz ROFR, then ZIVO and NutriChipz must, in good faith, negotiate and enter
into a licensing agreement for the deseribed use, i the form provided by ZIVIO at that time for similar uses of food for
hikman consumption and on terms, quantity, and pricing similar o those provided 1o the unrelated party.

Intcllectual Property

Protection of our intellectual property is a strutegic priority for our business. We rely on a combination of
patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets as well as nondisclosure and assignment of invention agreements, material
transfer agreements, confidentiality agreements and other measures 1o protect our intellectual property and other
proprietary rights.




Patents and Proprictary Righis

ZIVO Algal Products & Derivatives

We have rights in cenain granied patents, patent application publications and trademarks, With respect to
patents and trademarks, we have secured patent and federal tradenurk registrations in the USPTO, including the below:

U.S, Patent No. 7,807,622 issued October 5, 2010, relates to our proprictary complex algal euliure. The
title of the patent is: “Composition and use of phyto-percolate for treatment of disease.” This invention
relates generally to a method of preparation of a phyto-percolate that s derived from freshwater mixiure
including algae. The invention further relates o the potential use of the phyto-percolate in a variety of
dizcase states. This patent was filed on November 30, 2006 and has a term of 20 years from the carliest
claimed fling date.

U. 8. Patent No. 8,586,053 issued November 19, 2013, relates to our proprietary algal culture. The title of
the patent is: “Compaosition and Use of Phytopercolaie for Treatment of Discase.” This invention relales
generally to a method of preparation of a phyto-percolate that s denved from fresh water maxture
including algae, The invention further relates to the use of the phyto-percolate in a variety of discase states,
The phyto-percolate is believed to contain an activity that induces the reduction of soluble and insoluble
fibrin. Further, the phyvto-percolate is belicved to reduce oxidative stress in the body. The patent was filed
an Apnl 20, 2006 and has a term of 20 years from the earliest claimed filing date.

U.S, Patent No. 8,791,060 issued July 29, 2014, relates to our proprctary culture. Title of the patent is the
same: “Composition and Use of Phytopercolate for Treatment of discase.” This invention relates gencrally
1o a method of preparation of a phyto- percolate that is derived from fresh water mixture including algac,
The mvention further describes proteolytic activity. The patent was filed on October 4, 2010 and has a
term of 20 yeass from the carlicst claimed filing date.

U5, Patent No. 9,486,005 issucd November 8, 2016, relates to our proprictary culture. Title of the patent
is: “Agents and Mechanisms for Treating Hypercholesterolemia,” This invention relates gencrally to a
method of ireating hypercholesterolemia in mammals, by adminisiening an effective amouni of microbial
fermentation product and regulating genes involved in lipoprotein metabolism.

US, Parent No. 10,161,928, issued December 235, 2018, relates to a panel for monitoring levels of
biomarkers. Title of the patient is: “Wellness Panel.” This invention relates gencrally to an assay having at
least one inflammation monitoring test, al least one oxidative stress monitoning test, and at least one
antioxidant activity monitoring test. A method of menitoning an individual®s health, by collecting a sample
from the individual applyving the sample fo an assay panel performing at least one inflammation monitoring
test, at least one oxdative stress monitoring test, and at least one antioxidant activity monitoring test in the
pancl, and determining levels of biomarkers related to inflammation, oxidative stress, and antioxidant
activity and therefore providing information regarding the individual’s relative health andlor risk of
developing one or more diseise.

U5, Patent Mo, 10,166,270, issued January 1, 2009, relates to disclosing a composition and method for
effecting various cytokines and NF-KB. Title of the patent is; Composition and Method for Affecting
Cytokines and NF-KB.” This invention relates generally to administering an effective amount of a phyte-
percolate composition to an individual. In vanious exemplary embodiments, the composition is claimed o
be uscful for the effective treatment of inflammation, cancer, and/or various infections including HIV by
regulation of various interleukins, such as [L-10 and 11-2, and of ranscription factors including NF-KB.

U5, Patent No, 10,232,028, issued March 19, 2019, relates 1o solates and fractions from a phyto-percolate
and methods for affecting various cytokines by administering an effective amount of one or more of said
isolates or fractions (o an animal. In varous exemplary embodimenis, the isolates are useful for the
treatment of bovine, canine and swine infection or inflammation, including bovine mastitis, by regulation
of TNF-a, lactoferrin, INF-y, IL-B, scrum amyloid-A (SAA), IL-6 andor B-de-fensin associated with
infection or an immune response generally.

LS. Patent 10,765,732 issued September 8, 2020, title: Compounds and Metheds for Affecting Cytokines.
relates isolates and fractions from a phyto-percolate and methods for affecting various eviokines by
adminisicring an effective amount of ene or more of sakd isolates or fractions 1 an animal, In various
exemplary embodiments, the isolates are useful for the treatment of bovine, canine and swine infection or
inflammation, including bovine mastitis.




s US Paent 10,842,179 issued on November 24, 2020, tiled: Agents and Mechanisms for Treating
Hypercholesterolemia relates to methods of treating hypercholesterolemia in mammals using & microbial
fermentation and the regulation of genes involved in lipoprotein metabolism. A related European family
member, EP2533951, was also granted on April 22, 2020

= LS, Patent 11,065,287 issucd on July 20, 2021, utled: Methods of Moedulating Immune and Inflammatory
Responses Via Administration of an Algal Biomass relates o algal biomass and supematant derived from
at least one species of algae exhibits anti-inflammatory and immune response modulating properties,
Methods of reducing the symptoms of or treating a condition or discase in an animal, inchiding bovine
mastitis and Bovine Respiratory Discase Complex, and the pain and discomlon caused by osteoarthritis,
njury or overexertion or muscle and connective tissue strains, A related Brazilian family member,

BRI1201701 7599, was also granted on November 16th, 2021,

«  Canadian Patent CAZ0I4897 issued on December 29, 2020, titled: Nutritional Suppont for Animals Via
Administration of an Algal Derived Supplement relates w an algal biomass and supernatant derived from
at least onc specics of algac exhibits the ability 10 maimain general heahth in humans and non-human
animals and promwte a healhy immunc system in them. Food, feed and nutnitional supplements
comprising an algal biomass or superatant denved mom at least one species of algae are described.
Methods of maintaining general health or promoting a healthy immune system in humans and non-human
animals comprises administering o the animal in need thereof an algal biomass or supernatant derived
from at least one species of algae, or an exiract, derivative or homeopathic compound derived from the
algae species, biomass or supernatant, or & composition thereof.

& Canadian Pateat CA2631773 issued on April 26, 2022, titled Composition and Use of Phyto-Percolate for
Treatment of Disease relales 1o generally to a methed of preparation of phyto-percolate that s denved
from fresh water mixture including algae. The phyto-percolate 15 believed 1o contain an enzyme having
proteolytic activity. The invention further relates o the use of the phyto-percalate in a varicty of discase
stafes,

»  Furopean Patent 2538951 issued on April 22, 2020, tiled Agents and Mechanisms for Preventing
Hypercholesterolemia relates to the extractions from algae. In particular, the present inventor relates to
cholesterol-lowening extractions from algoe and extractions thal have the ability to favorably shifi
HDLLDL profile in mammals.

We also have allowed pending trademark applications for “KALGAE,” “ZIVO™, and “ZIVO Bioscience™ in
several countries. We may have other common law rights in other trademarks, trude names, service marks, and the like
which will continue as long as we use those respective marks.

Patents

The term of individual patents and patent applications will depend upon the legal term of the patents in the
countries in which they are obtained. In most countries, the patent term is 20 years from the date of filing of the patent
application {or parent application, if applicable). For example, if an inteational Patent Cooperation Treaty (“PCT™)
application 15 filed, any patent issving from the PCT application in a specific country expines 20 years from the filing
date of the PCT application. In the United States, using the Paris Convention route, if a patent was in force on June 8,
1995, or issucd on an application that was filed before June 3, 1995, that patent will have a term that is the greater of 20
wears from the filing date, or 17 vears from the date of issue.

Under the Halch-Waxman Act, the term of a patent that covers an FDA-approved drug or biological product
may also be eligible for patent term extension (“PTE”). PTE permits restoration of a portion of the patent term of a 1S,
paient as compensation for the patent term lost during product development and the FDA regulatory review process if
approval of the application for the product is the first permitted commercial markening of 2 dmg or biological product
containing the active mgredient. The patent term restoration period 15 generally one-half the time between the eifective
date of an investigational new drug (IND) and the submission date of a biological license application ("BLA™) plus the
time between the submission date of a BLA and the approval of that application, The Hatch-Waxman Act permits a PTE
for only one patent applicable 1o an approved drag, and the maximum period of restoration is five years bevond the
expiration of the patent. A PTE cannot extend the remaining term of a patent beyond a total of 14 years from the date of
product approval, and a patent can only be extended once, and thus, even if a single patent is applicable to multiple
products, if can enly be extended based on one product. Similar provisions may be available in Europe and certain other
forcign junsidictions o extend the term of a patent that covers an approved drug. When possible, depending upon the
length of clinical trials and other factors involved in the filing of a BLA, we cxpect o apply for PTEs for patents
covering our therapeutic candidates and products and their methods of use,




The following patent filings are pertinent to the operation of the ZIVO business:

Application Name Country Application No. Status
Agents and Method for improving Gut Health | US 17/465,457 g:zrzm;"““'m"“m
Algal Feed Ingredient for Controlling us 17/415.221 Under Prosecution: Notice of
Coccidiosis and Necrotic Enteritis in Pouliry Publication March 10, 2022
Algal  Feed Ingredient  for  Controlling | Brazil 12021002229 Under Prosccution
Coccidiosis and Necrotic Enteritis in Poultry
Al'gal Feed Ingredient for Controlling | Canada 3124190 Under Prosceution
Coccrdiosis and Necrotic Enteritis in Pouliry
Algal  Feed Ingredient for Controlling | Europe 901280.08 Under Prosecution
Coccidiosis and Necrotic Enteritis in Pouliry
Algal Feed Ingredient  for  Controlling | Hong 62022046143 Under Prosecution
Coccidiosis and Mecrotic Enteritis in Pouliry | Kong
Algal Feed Ingredient for Controlling | Mexico MX/a/a2021/007339 | Under Prosecution
Coccidiosis and Neerotic Enteritis in Pouliry
Algal Feed Ingredient for Controlling | Peru 1048-2021 Under Prosecution
Coccidiosis and Necrotic Enteritis in Pouliny
Algal  Feed [Ingrediemt for Controlling | Thailand | 2100003721 Under Prosccution
Coccidiosis and Necrotic Entenitis in Pouliry
Algal Feed Ingredient for  Controlling | US PCTAUSI9/67600 Under Prosecution; Published June
Coccidiosis and Necrotic Enteritis in Pouliry 25, 2022; National Stage Deadline
June 21, 2021
Algoriphagus SP, Bosca SP, Brovundimonas | US 17/576,237 Under Prosecution; published July
SP, Desulfovibrio SP, Microbacterium 5P, 11,2022
Sphingomonas SP, and Variovorax SP for Use
in  Discase Prevention  and  Treatment
(Compleic)
Algoriphagus 5P, Bosea SP, Brevundimonas | US PCTAUS2022/01 2499 | Under Prosecution; Published July
5P, Desulfovibrio 5P, Microbacterium SP, 28, 2023; National Stage Deadline
Sphingomonas SP, and Variovorax SP for Use July 15, 2023;
in Discase Prevention and  Treatment
(Complete)
Algoriphagus 5P, Bosea SP, Brevundimonas | US 17876444 Under Prosecution; Published July
SP, Desulfovibrio SP, Microbacterium 5P, 21,2022
Sphingomonas 5P, and Variovorax SP for Use
in  Discase  Prevention  and  Treatment
Simplificd)
Composition and Method For  Affecting | Brazil BR 11 2012 011678 | Under Prosecution
Cytokines and NF-xB L
Dictary Supplementz, Food Ingredients and | Brazil BRI1201901 8600 Under Prosccution
Foods Compnsing  High-Protein  Algal
Hiomass
Dictary Supplements, Food Ingredients and | Mexico M2 2019010670 Under Prosecution
Foods Comprising  High-Profein  Algal
HBiomass
Dictary Supplements, Food Ingredients and | Peru I820-2019 Under Prosecution
Foods Comprising High-Protein  Algal
Biomass
Dictary Supplements, Food Ingredients and | Thailand 190105502 Under Prosccution
Foods Comprising  High-Protein  Algal
Biomass
Dictary Supplements, Food Ingredients and | China JO1BRE+1 Under Prosecution
Foods Comprising  High-Protein ~ Algal
Biomass




Dictary Supplements, Food Ingrediemts and | Hong 62020009617 Under Prosccution

Foods Comprising  High-Protein -~ Algal | Kong

Biomass

Dictary Supplements, Food Ingredients and | US PCTAUSIR21215 Under Prosecution:  Published

Foods Compnsing High-Protein  Allgal Scptember 13, 201%; National

Biomass Stage Deadline March 6, 2018

Dictary Supplements, Food. Ingredients and | Europe I8T63110.5 Under Prosccution

Foods Comprising High-Proicin -~ Algal

Hiomass

Enhancement  of Vaccine Efficacy  Via | US 17/367,193 Under  Prosecution:  Published

Hiomass andior Related Matenial in Animal March 3, 2022; National Stage

Feed Deadline December 26, 2022

Enhancement of Vaccine Efficacy Via | Europe 2218280981 Under Prosecution

Biomass and'or Related Material in Animal

Feed

Enhancement  of Vaccine Efficacy Via | Brazil BR 1020220133310 | Under Prosecution

Biomass andor Belated Material in Animal

Feed

Enhancement of Vaccine Efficacy Via | China 202211E+11 Under Prosecution

Biomass andior Related Material in Animal

Feed

Enhancement  of Vaccine  Efficacy  Via | India 2.02244E+11 Under Prosecution

Biomass andor Related Material in Animal

Feed

Immne Priming To  Accelerate/Enhance | US PCTUS21/ 135080 Under  Prosecution;  Published

Immune Response Through Administration of December 30, 2021 National

Matural Immune Modulator Stage Deadline December 26,
2022

Immune Prnming To  Accelerate/Enhance | US I7/358. 878 Under  Prosecution;  Published

Immune Response Through Admanistration of January 20, 2022

Natural | Muodulator

Immune Priming To Accelerate/Enhance | Austra 2021296916 Under Prosecution

Immune Response Through Administration of

Natural Immune Modulator

Immune Prniming To Accelerate/Enhance | Brazil 112022026479-8 Under Prosecution

Immune Response Through Administration of

Matural Immune Modulator

Immune  Priming To  Accelerate/Enhance | Canada 3182630 Under Prosecution

Immune Response Through Administration of

Natural Immune Modulator

Immune Prnming To Accclerate/Enhance | China TBD Under Prosceution

Immune Response Through Administration of

Matural [ Modulator

Immune  Priming To  Accelerate/Enhance | Europe 218288421 Under Prosecution

Immune Response Through Administration of

MNatwral Immune Modulator

Immune Prniming To  Accelerate/Enhance | Japan TBD Under Prosecution

Immune Response Through Administration of

Waiural | Modulator

Immune Priming To Accelerate/Enhance | Mexico Mx/a2023/000158 | Under Prosccution

Immune Response Through Administration of

Natural I Modulator

Immune Prnming To Accelerate/Enhance | New T95393 Under Prosecution

Immune Response Through Administration of | Zealand

Natural Immune Modulator

Immune Priming To  Accelerate/Enhance | Peru 00344.2022-DIN Under Prosecution

Immune Response Through Administration of

Natural | Modulator

Immune Praming To Accelerate/Enhance | Russia 2022133478 Under Prosecution

Immune Response Through Administration of

Watural | Modulator




Immune  Priming To  Accelerate/Enhance | South 2022-13483 Under Prosccution

Immune Response Through Administration of | Africa

Natural Immune Modulator

Maturation of  Immune and  Metabolic | US PCTIS22/ 14347 Under  Prosecution;  Published

Processes via Algal Biomass andior Related August 4, 20222; National Stage

Material Administered 1o Animals Deadline July 29, 2023

Maturation  of  Immune and  Meabolic | US 17/587,582 Under  Prosecution;  Published

Processes via Algal Biomass and'or Related August 4, 2022

Material Adminisicred 1o Animals

Meihod of Moedulating Immune Response and | Brazil BR 1120170175991 | Under Prosccution

Infl ¥ Resp Via Administration

Algal Biomass

Methods of Modulating lmmune Response and | Europe 167529189 Under Prosecution

Inflammatory Response Via Administration of

Algal Biomass

Methods of Modulating Imnine Response and | Hoag 18108238.5 Under Prosecution

Inflammatory Response Via Administration of | Kong

Algal Biomass

Methods of Modulating Immunce Response and | Canada 3.011,.687 Under Prosccution

Inflammatory Response Via Administration of

Algal Biomass

Methods of Modulating lmmune Response and | US PCTUSIA/IRI0S Under  Prosecution;  Published

Inflammatory Response Via Administration of August 25, 2016; National Stage

Algal Biomass Deeadline August 16, 2017

Natural Feed Composition Derived from Fresh | US 17410016 Under Presecution; Published July

Water Algal Cultures for the Promotion of 28, 2022

Animal Growth

Natural Feed Composition Derived from Fresh | US PCT /US2I/50847 Under  Prosecution:  Published

Wiater Algal Cultures for the Promotion of February 3, 2022; National Stuage

Animal Growth Deadline January 27, 2023

Mutritional Suppori for Animals Via Europe 17753729.7 Under Prosccution

Admunistration of an Algal Derived

ik

Nutritienal Suppert for Animals Via Mexico MX/a2018/009818 | Under Prosecution

Admimstration of an Algal Denved

Supplement

Nutritional Suppon for Animals Via China 2017800235615 Under Prosecution

Admnistration of an Algal Derived

Supplement

Mutritional Support for Animals Via Hong 19,125,173 Under Prosccution

Administration of an Algal Denived Kong

A

Nutritional Support for Animals Via us PCTAUSIT | 7906 Under  Prosecution;  Published

Administration of an Algal Derived August 24, 2017, Mational Stage

Suppl Deadline August 15, 2018

Nutnitional Support for Animals Via us 15/998,619 Under  Prosecution;  Published

Administration of an Algal Derived Ourober 22, 2020

Supplement

Positive  Latency  Effects on  Coccidiosis | US PCTUSZI/I39178 | Under  Prosccution;  Published

Prevention and Treatment via Animal Feed December 30, 20217 Mational
Stage Deadline December 26,
2022

Positive Latency Effects on  Coccidiosis | US 177358953 Under  Prosecution;  Published

Prevention and Treatment via Animal Feed February 24, 2022

Posiive  Latency  Effects on  Coccidiosis | Australia | 202129453 Under Prosecution

Prevention and Treatment via Amimal Feed




Positive  Latency Effects on  Coccidiosis | Brazil 112022020461-5 Under Prosccution

Prevention and Treatment via Amimal Feed

Positive  Latency  Effecis on  Coccidiosis | Canada TBD Under Prosccuiion

Prevention and T via Ammal Feed

Positive Latency  Effects on  Coccidiosis | China 417764600 Under Prosecution

Prevention and Treatment via Amimal Feed

Positive Latency Effects on  Coccidiosis | Europe 21829179 Under Prosccution

Prevention and Treatment via Animal Feed

Positive Latency  Effects on  Coccidiosis | Japan TBD Under Prosecution

Prevention and Treatment via Amimal Feed

Positive  Latency  Effects on  Coceidiosis | Mexco Wl 202 37000 66 Under Prosecution

Prevention and Treatment via Animal Feed

Positive Latency Effects on  Coccidiosis | New T95328 Under Prosecution

Prevention and Ti via Animal Feed Zealand

Positive  Latency  Effects on  Coccidiosis | Peru 003043.2022. 01N Under Prosecution

Prevention and Trestment via Animal Focd

Positive  Latency  Effects on Coccidiosis | Russia 2022133470 Under Prosccution

Prevention and Treatment via Amimal Feed

Positive Latency  Effects on  Coccidiosis | South 2022713479 Under Prosccution

Prevention and Treatment via Animal Feed Africa

The Use of Vanovorax Microbes as a|US 177400, 790 Under  Prosecution:  Published

Coccidiostat February 17, 2022

The Use of Varpvorax Microbes as a|US PCT/US21/45744 Under  Prosccution;  Published

Coceidiostal February 17, 2022; National Stage
Deeadline February 12, 2023

Use of TLR4 Modulator in the Treatment of | US 17/320,706 Under  Prosecution:  Published

Coccidiosis November |8, 2021

Use of TLR4 Modulator in the Treatment of | US PCTAIS21/32457 Under  Prosccution:  Published

Coccidiosis Movember 18, 2021 National
Stage Deadline November 14,
2022

Use of TLR4 Modulator in the Treatment of | Australia | 2021271805 Under Prosecution

Cocoidiosis

Use of TLR4 Modulator in the Treatment of | Brazil BR 11 2022 022083 | Under Prosecution

Coccidiosis 9

Use of TLR4 Modulator in the Trestment of | Canada 3177327 Under Prosccution

Coccidiosis

Use of TLR4 Modulator in the Treatment of | China 202180034578.7 Under Prosecution

Coccidiosis

Use of TLR4 Modulator in the Treatment of | Europe 218051324 Under Prosecution

Coccrdiosis

Use of TLR4 Modulator in the Treatment of | Japan 2022-560562 Under Prosccution

Coccidiosiz

Use of TLR4 Modulator in the Treatment of | Mexico MX/a202204213 Under Prosecution

Coccidiosis

Use of TLR4 Modulator in the Treatment of | New 793737 Under Prosecution

Coceidiosis Zealand

Usze of TLR4 Modulator in the Treatment of | Russia 2022128942 Under Prosecution

Coccidiosis

Use of TLR4 Modulator in the Treatment of | South 2022/11691 Under Prosecution

Coccidiosis Africa




The following trademark filings are perfineni to the operation of ZIVO's business:

Trademark Filing Duate Application No. Country Status
Kalgac 6132018 BT961,000 Us Under Prosccution
ZIVO 22022 91/516,573 Us Under Prosecution
ZIVO 1272002020 48512762 (Class 29) CN Issued
ZIVD 12/20/2020 48512762 (Class 5) CN Issued
ZIVO 1272002020 48512744 (Class 31) [, ] Issued
ZIVO 73072020 TMZCA85127632CSL01 | CN Issucd
IV e |20 B8/288,453 us Under Prosecution
Zivo Broscienoe | 24/2019 BR/2ER.453 us Notice of Design Search Code 1ssued
ZIVO
Bioscience and | 773002020 48512743 (Class 5) CN Issued
Device
ZIVO
Bioscience and | 1272002020 48512742 (Class 29) CN Issued
Device
LIVOy
Bioscience and | 122002020 48512741 (Class 31) CN Issued
Device
Trade Secrets

We also rely on trade secrets. technical know-how and continuing innovation to develop and maintain our
compeitive position, We seck to protect such intellectual property and proprictary information by generally requiring our
employees, consultants, contractors, scientific collaborators and other advisors to execute non-disclosure and assignment
of invention agreements upon the commencement of their employment or engagement as the case may be. Our
agreements with our employees prohibit them from providing us with any intellectual property or proprictary information
of third partics. We also generally require confidentiality agreements or material transfer agreements with third panties
that receive or have access 1o our confidential information, data or other materials, Notwithstanding the foregoing, there
can be no assurance that our employees and third parties that have access to our confidential proprictary information will
abide by the terms of their agreements. Despite the measures that wie take to protect our intellectual property and
confidential information, unauthorized third pnm'r_i may copy aspecis of our products or obtain and use our propriciary
information.

Government Regulation
Overew
Biotech

As a discovery-stage licensor, we do not intend to fund and oversee the final regulatory approvals and
commercialization processes of our product candidates, as we expect these to be bome by the licensee in all cascs.

Agtech

As the licensor of food technology, and producer of culture inoculum for cultivation, ZI1VO and its licensed
growers must furnish to customers algal biomass that is compliant with all food standards and FDA regulations. In all
cases, the complinnce efforts involve GRAS affirmanion and potentially an FDA “No Objection” or “No Questions™ letter
for cach target specic. Z1VO has already obtained self-affirmed GRAS status for human use,

Feed Ingredivnts & Suppleinents - Companion Aninials

Although state and AAFCO officials regulsie companion animal feeds, treats and supplements, the supervision
and standards are largely handled by the FDDA and the CVM on a national level. We currently do not have approval to
sell companion animal feed ingredients since we must first develop the specic-specific safety and health data required 1o
do 0. Companion animal products are aimed primarily at dogs and horses. We believe that a single safety/tox study and
a separate dose/benefit study per animal applications will be sufficient. As with humans, we would seek 1o obtain a
GRAS affirmation.




To clarify, an “application” is a single ingredient in a single formulation and a single claim for a single animal
species, Therefore, a dictary supplement denved from the Company's algal biomass, intended as a joini health
supplement for adult dogs, constitutes a single application. That single application requires iis own studies before any
dog trest manufacturer would consider licensing or purchasing the Company’s material. Any change to the claims (more
energy, shinier coal, etc.) or the targel specie requines a new study, This is the current state of regulation, and it holds e
for all human and amimal applications.

Food Ingredient - Human

The food mgredient industry is regulated by several federal agencies, Anything that is introduced into food or
beverages, whether to prevent spoilage, optimize processing or 10 enhance its nutritive value, must meet standards set and
enforced rigorously by the FDA and LSDA.

GRAS (Generally Regarded as Safe)

The FDA requires that ingredients introduced into human foods and beverages are safe and are manufactured in
a consistent manner that guarantees consumer safety. The standard that the Company must meet for food ingredient
safety is GRAS, The Company opted to self-affim GRAS status for its algal biomass, and upon completion in November
2018 of the sclf-affirmation process, the biomass may be used as a food ingredient. The Company may submit the self-
affirmed GRAS reportto the FDA in expectation the agency will respond to the Company noling “no guestions™
concerning our data,

In 2016, ZIVO contructed the Burdock Group to assist the Company in the comphance process, and o help with
the process with the FDA. Further, the Company retained the New York law firm of Uliman Shapiro Ullman LLP, now
pan of Rivkin-Radler LLP, to advise in the compliance process.

Current Good Mamufacturing Process

The other set of standards that must be met before any ingredient can be introduced into foods and beverages are
the current Good Manufacturing Practices (“eGMPs"™). The Company is required (o register as a producer of food and/or
dictary supplement ingredients with FDA and will thus be subject to inspection by the agency for compliance with
applicable cGMP regulations,

In addition, there are numerous state and lecal licensing and inspection requirements should the product be
produced in the US, If produced overscas, the FDA, USDA and U S, Customs requine that cach grower is enrolled in the
Foreign Supplier Verification Program, a cost (o be bome by the grower and ZIVO,

Dietary Supplements

Dictary suppl which include vitamins, minerals. nutritive substances, and natural products that are
standalone products (“nutraccuticals™) fall under the junsdiction of the FDA and must comply with the Dictary
Supplement Health Education Act ("DSHEA”) legislation passed in 1994 and updated several times since, along with the
Food Safety Modermization Act of 2011,

NDI Application

As human dictary supplement applications are being readied for market launch, the Company is required to file
a New Dietary Ingredient (NDI) Notification. The standard applied to NDI Nonfications s “reasonable expectation of
safiety” for intended use as a supplement. As part of the notification process, ZIVO must conduct at least one human
study, and possibly two. These studies can run concurrenily but should not be conducted by the same clinical rescarch
organization. To date, ZIVO has not run these studies. One such study may be the same dose iolerance study planned 1o
mcrease the maximum allowable consumption limit as discussed above.

Skin Care and Topical Uses

The US Congress is contemplating rmplementation of a statute requiring all skin care and cosmetics production
to follow cGMP. If this legislation 1 passed the Company will need to ensure that it and any contract manufacturers are
certified to be oGMP compliant.




Structure/Function Clains

The Company can go to market (once a single study has been completed and GMP protocols are in evidence)
with simple structure/function claims regarding the ability 1o maintain, for example, a healthy immune response or a
beneficial anti-inflammatory response. This is the mosi basic of FDA standards and essentially means that as long as
cGMP standards are met, a study has been conducted and that in-process toxicology repors are available, the Company
is able to market its product.

The market reality 1s that nuiroceutical and supplement makers won't take on the product unless its chemical
makeup is generally described, the plant or animal is properly classificd (in this casc. algac) and the manufacturing
process is free of health hazards and that ¢cGMP protocols are observed, all of which the Company intends to meel or
exceed.

USP Certification

The DSHEA regulstions also require that a safe dosage is cstublished for any vitamin, mineral or dictary
supplement, whether it is natural or synthetic in composition. The United States Pharmacopeia ("USP™) is the official
pharmacopeia of the United States. USP establishes written (documentary) and physical (reference) standards for
medicines, food ingredients. dictary supplement products and ingredients,

These standards are used by regulatory agencies and manufacturers 1o help 10 ensure that these products are of
the appropriate identity, as well as strength, quality, punty, and consisiency, The Company will endeavor to adhere to the
most basic ISP standard in order to maintain speed to market. It or itz licensees will then consider the USP Verified
products designation.

Employees

As of December 31, 2022 we had 8 full-time employees, consisting of clinical development, product
development, regulatory, manufactuning, quality, finance, adminisiration and managers. We also regularly use
mdependent contraciors across the organization. None of our employees are represented by a labor union or covered by a
collective bargaining agreement. We consider our relationship with our cmplovees o be good,

Corporate Information

Wie were incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on March 28, 1983, under the name of "L Peck
Enterprises, Ine.” On May 27, 1999, we changed our name to *Wesiern Glory Hole, Inc.” From 1990 unii] October 2003,
we had no business operations; we were in the development stage and were seeking profitable business opportunitics, On
October 30, 2003, we acquired 100%% of the outstanding shares of Health Enhancement Corporation (“HEC™) i
exchange for 112.500 of our shares, making HEC our wholly-owned subsidiary. In connection with this transaction, we
changed our name to Health Enhancement Products, Inc. On October 14, 2014, at the annual meeting of the stockholders
of the Company, o proposal was passed to change the name of the Company from Health Enhancement Products, Inc. to
Zivo Bioscience, Inc. On October 30, 2014, the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority approved the name Zivo
Bioscience, Inc, for trading purposes and the symbol change to ZIVO effective November 10, 2014,

Item 1A, Risk Factors.

An mvezmrent i our secnrities haz @ high degree of rizk. Before you ezt you should carefilly conzider the
rizks and wncertainties described below and the other mformation in thiz Anmnal Repert. Amy of the risks and
unceriainties set forth herein conld materially and adversely affect onr business, reinltz of operations and financial
condition, which in turn could materially and adversely affect the irading price or value of our securities. Additional
risks not curremtly known to ns or which we conrider immaterial based on infarmation currenthy available fo ns may alse
materially adversely affect us. As a rezult, you could lose all or part of vour imvesimant.




Risks Relating to Ohar Business

Worldwide economic and social instability could adversely affect our revenue, financial condition, or results of
aperations.

The health of the global economy. and the credit markets and 1the financial services industry n particular, as
well as the stability of the social fabnic of our society, affects our business and operating results. For example, the credit
and financial markeis may be adversely affected by the current conflict between Russia and Ukraine anvd measures faken
m response thereio., I the credil markets are not favorable, we may be unable 1o raise additional financing when needed
or on favorable terms. Our customers may experience financial difficultics or be unable to borrow moncy to fund their
operations, which may adversely impact their ability 10 purchase our products or 1o pay for our products on a timely
basis. il at all. In addition, adverse economic conditions, such as recent supply chain disruptions and labor shonages and
persistent inflation may adversely impact our suppliers’ ahility to provide our manufacturer with materials and
components, which may negatively impact our business. These coonomic conditions make it more difficult for us to
accurately forecasi and plan our future business aclivities,

The Company is exposed to risks of political instability and changes in governmant policies, laws and regulations in
Peru.

The Company’s algae ponds are located in the Republic of Peru, and may be adversely affected in varying
degrees by politcal instability, government regulations relating 10 agnculture and foreign investment therein, and the
policies of other nations in respect of Perw, Any changes in regulations or shifts in political conditions are beyond the
Company's control and may adversely affect the Company’s business. New laws, regulations and requirements may be
retroactive in their effect and implementation. The Company's operations may be affected in varying degrees by
government regulations, including those with respect to restrictions on production, price contrels, export comtrols, income
taxes, expropriation of propenty, employment, land use, water use, and covironmental legislation.

Since December 2022, Peru has  experienced an increased Jevel of civil unrest and  political protests.
Civil unrest has led to disnuptions in the ability of foreign nationals to iravel 1 and from Peru. The Company continues to
closely monitor the situation and 1is poteniial impact on Company operaiions.

e are not in compliance with Nasdag's continued listing requirements. Iff we are unable to comply swith Nasdag's
continied listing requirements, onur commeon stock could be delisted, which conld affect our comnion stock's market
price and Nguidity and reduce our ability te raise capital.

Our common stock 15 currently lisied on the Nasdaq Capital Market, Nasdaq imposes, among other
requirements, continued listing standards including minimum bid, public float and stockholders’ equity requirements.

On November 22, 2022, we received wrilten notice from Nasdag stating that we no longer comply with the
minimum stockholders” equity requirement under Nasdag Listing Rule 5550(b)( 1) for continued listing on the Nasdag
Capital Market because our stockholder’s equity, as reported in our Quanterly Report on Form 10-0) for the quarterky
period ended Seplember 30, 2022, had fallen below $2.5 million. The notice also indicated that we do not meet the
alternative compliance standards,

On January 6, 2023, we submitted our compliance plan o Nasdag. On January 11, 2023, Nasdag notified us that
it had determined to grant us an extension untl May 22, 2023 to regain compliance, If we are unable to regain
compliance, Nasdag may make a determination to delist our common stock. Furthermore, if our common stock is
delisted, it will trade, if at all, only on an over-the-counter marked, and then only if one or more regisiered broker-dealer
market makers comply with quotation requirements. Upon any such delisting, our common stock could become subject
to the regulations of the SEC relating 1o the market for penny stocks. Generally, any equity secunity not traded on a
national securities exchange that has a market price of less than $5.00 per share may be deemed a penny siock. Any
delisting of our common stock could adversely affect the market liquidity of our commaon stock and the market price of
our common stock could decrease. Funthermore, if our common stock were delisted it could adversely affect our ability
to obtain financing for the continuation of our operations and our ability to attract and retain employees by means of
equily compensation and'or result in the loss of confidence by investors.




We have inenrreed, and may confine fo incur increased cosis and d ds upon manag t as a result of being a

public company.

As a public company in the United States, listed on the Masdag Capital Market, we incur significant legal,
accounting and other costs, These additional costs could negatively alfect our financial resulis. In addition, changing
laws, regulations and standards relating 10 corporate govemance and public disclosure, including regulations
implemented by the SEC and Nasdag, may increase legal and financial compliance costs and make some activities more
time-consuming. These laws, regulations and standards are subject 1o varying interpretations and, as a result, ther
application in praciice may evolve over ime as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies. We initend
to invest resources to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards, and this investment may result in increased
general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management’s time and attention from revenue-generating
activities o compliance activities. If, notwithstanding our elforts 10 comply with new laws, regulations and standands, we
fail to comply, regulatory authoritics may initiate legal proceedings against us and our business may be harmed.

Failure 1o comply with these rules might alse make it more difficuli for us to obiain some types of nsurance,
including dircctor and officer hability insurance. and we might be forced to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or
incur substantially highcr costs to obtain the same or similar coverage, The impact of these events could also make i
more difficult for us 1o anract and retain qualified persons 1o serve on our Board, on committees of our Board or as
members of senior management.

We have a history of operating losses, and we may not be able to achieve or sustain profitability. In additian, we inay
b unnble fo continee as a going concern.

We have incurred net losses during each of our fiscal years since our mception. Our net boss for the year ended
December 31, 2022 was approximately $8,7 million and our accumulated deficit totaled approximately $115.8 million as
of December 31, 2022, We do not know whether or when we will become profitable, if ever, We currently expect
operaling losses and negative cash flows 1o continue for al least the next several years.

Our ability to generate sufficient revenue o achicve profitability depends on our ability, cither alone or with
stralegic collaboration partners, (o successfully complete the development of, and oblain the regulatory approvals
necessary to commercialize our product candidates.

Our audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 have
been prepared on the basis that we will continue as a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and
satisfaction of labilitics in the normal course of business. Our auditor’s report for the year ended Diccember 31, 2022
conlains an cxplanatory paragraph that we have incurred significani losses since our incepiion and we expect that we will
continue o incur losses as we aim to successfully execute our business plan and will be dependent on additional public or
private financings, collaborations or licensing arrangements with strategic partners, or additional credit lines or other deb
financing sources 1o fund continuing operations, Based on our cash balances, recurring losses since inception and our
existing capital resources to fund our planned operations for a twelve-month period, there is substantial doubt about our
ability to continue as a going concern. As noted below, we will need to obtain additienal funding from eguity or debt
financings, which may require us 1o agree lo burdensome covenanis, grani securily inlerests in our assels, enler info
collaboration and licensing arrangemenis that require us to relinguish commercial rights, or grant licenses on terms that
arc not favorsble, No assurance con be given at this time as to whether we will be able to achieve our fundraising
objectives, regardless of the terms. 1T adequate funds are not available, the Company may be required 1o reduce operating
expenses, delay or reduce the scope of its praduct development programs, obtain funds through arangements with others
that may require the Company to relinquish rights to cerain of its technologies or products that the Company would
olherwise seck 10 develop or commercialize itself, or cease operalions.

We will require substantinl addifional financing ta achieve our goals, and mj’ll‘im fo obfain this necessary capital
when needed could force us to delay, Nmit, reduce or terminate our product development afforts.

Our operations have consumed substantial amounts of cash since inception. We expect o continue 10 incur
significant expenses and operating losses for the foreseeable fumire in connection with our planned rescarch, development
and product commercialization efforts. In addition, we will require additional financing to achieve our goals and our
failure to do so could adversely affect our commercialization cfforts. We anticipate that our expenses will increase
substantially if and as we:

s contimue our development process for our product candidates;
& geck w0 maintain, protect and expand our intellectual property portfolio: and
e seck to attract and retain skilled personnel.




1f we were to experience any delays or encounter issues with any of the above, it could further increase the costs
associated with the above. Funther, the net operating losses we incur may fuctuate significantly from quarner o quarter
and year to year, such that a period-to-period comparison of our results of operations may not be a good mdication of our
future performance.

Owr production of algae involves an agricultural process, subject to such risks as weather, dizease, contamination and
water availabilify.

The production of our proprictary algae strain involves complex agricultural systems with inherent risks
including weather, disease and contamination. These risks are unpredictable, and the efficient and effective cultivation of
algar requires consistent light, warm temperatures, low rainfall and proper chemical balance in o very nutrient rich
environment,

If the chemical composition of a pond changes from its required balance, unusually high levels of contamination
due to the growth of unwanted organisms or other biological problems may occur and would result in a loss of
harvestable outpui. These often arise without waming and sometimes there are few or no clear indicators as to
appropriate remediation or comective measures. However, environmental factors cannot be controlled in an open-air
cnvironment, therefore, we cannot, and do not attempt to, provide any form of assurance with regard 10 our systems,
processes, location, or cost-cffectiveness, In the event that our growers need to take steps to comect any chemical
imbalance or contamination of their ponds, including by re-inoculating the ponds, such measures may not be effective
and could interrupt production. To the extent that our production 15 negatively impacied by environmental factors, we
may be unable to fill large orders for one or more months until such time that production improves.

We rely on third parfies fo grow onr propriefary algae strains and conduct research, and preciinical and clinical
testing, and these third parties may not perform satisfactordy.

We do not currently, and do not expect to in the future, independently conduct any aspects of the growth of our
propriciary algae strains, research and momitoring and management of our ongoing prechnical and climical programs, We
currenily rely, and expect o continue 1o rely, on third parties with respect io these items, and conirol only cerlain aspects
of their activities.

Any of these thind parties may terminate their engagements with us at any time unbess otherwise stated in
coniraciual agreements. If we need to enter into altemative amrangements, our commercialization activities or our
therapeutic candidate development activities may be delayed or suspended. Our reliance on these third parties for
rescarch and development activities, reduces our control over these activities bul does not relieve us of our responsibility
to ensure compliznce with all required legal, regulatory and scientific standards and any applicable trial protocols.

Any of these events could lead to delays in the development of our product candidates, including delays in our
trials, or failure 10 obtain regulatory approval for our product candidates, or it could impact our ability to successfully
commercialize our current product candidates.

Beeause our ZIVO algae is currently produced by only one grower, the lozs of this grower would have a matedal
adverse impact on our eperating results and cash flovs,

Currently only one facility grows our ZIVO algae. Any termination of a business relationship with, or a
significant sustained reduction in business received from this grower could delay our production efforts and could have a
material adverse effect on our operating results and cash flows, We must matenially increase the number of our growers
and if we cannot, it will adversely impact our financial condition and our business.

I we fail ta ativact and keep onr Clilef Executive Qfficer and Cliief Financial Qfficer, senior management and key
scientific personnel, we may be unable to successfully develop our therapentic candidares, conducr our clinical trials
and commercialize our therapeutic candidades.

We are highly dependent on the members of our executive team, mcluding our Chiel Executive Officer and
Chiefl Financial Officer, the loss of whose services may adversely impact the achievement of our objectives. Any of our
exeeutive officers conld leave our employment st any time, as all of our emplovees are “at will™ employees. Recruiting
and retaining other qualified :mtplsnycu_ consultants and advisors for our business, including scientific and technical
personnel, will also be enitical 1o our success,

Recruiting and retaining qualified scientific, clinical, manufacturing, sales and marketing personnel will also be
eritical to our success, We may nol be able to atiract and retain these personnel on acceplable lerms given the
conpetition among numerous pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies for similar personnel. We also experience
competition for the hiring of scientific and clinical personnc] from wniversitics and rescarch institutions. In addition, we
rely on consultants and advisors, including scientific and clinical advisors, to assist us in formulating our rescarch and
development and commercialization sirategy. Our consultanis and advisors may be employed by employers other than us
and may have commitmenis under consulting or advisory contracts with other entities that may limit their availability to
us.




If we are unable o enfer finte agreentents with third parties fo marke! and sell our product candidates, if approved, we
may be unable ta generate any revennes.

We currently do not have internal sales, marketing and distribution capability for our products snd the cost of
establishing and maintaining such an organization may exceed the cost-effectiveness of doing so. In order to markel any
products thal may be eligible for commercialization, we must build our sales, distribution, marketng. managenal and
other non-technical capabilities or make arrangements with third parties to perform these services, Wi have limited prior
experience in the markefing, sale or disinibution of approved products and there are significant risks involved in building
and managing a sales organizabion, including our ability 1o hare, retain, and incentivize qualified individuals, generate
sufficient sales leads, provide adequate training to sales and marketing personncl, and effectively manage a
geographically dispersed sales and marketing team. Any failure or delay in the development of our intemnal sales,
marketing and distnbution capabilities would adversely impact the commercialization of our therapeutic candidates.

Because the results of preclinical studies and dinical trials are not necessanly predictive of future results, we can
provide no assurances that enr otlver product candidates will have favorable results in future studies or frials,

Positive results from preclinical studics or clinical trials should not be relied on as evidence that later or larger-
scale studies or trials will succeed, Even if our product candidates achieve positive results in early-stage preclinical
studies or clinical trials, there is no guarantee that the efficacy of any product candidate shown in carly studies will be
replicated or maintained in future studies andlor larger populations. Similarly, favorable safety and twolerability data seen
in shori-term studies might not be replicated m studies of longer duration and/or larger populations. If any product
candidate demonsinates insufficient safety or efficacy in any preclinical study or clinical inal, we would experience
potentially significant delays in, or be required to sbandon, development of that product candidate,

Further, data obtained from clinical trials are susceptible to varying imterpretations. IF we delay or abandon our
cfforts o develop any of our product candidates, we may not be able 1o generate sufficient revenues 0 become
profitable, and our reputation in the industry and in the investmen! comnuinity would likely be significantly damaged,
cach of which would cause our stock price to decrease significantly.

Development of certain af our products invelves a lengthy and expensive process, with uncerfain onfcomes. We may,
and our current or future licensers may, incur additional costs or experience delays in completing, or nitimately be
unable to complete, the development and commercialization af any product.

We may, and our current or future licensees may, experience numerous unforeseen events during or as a resualt
of clinical trials that could delay or prevent our ability to receive marketing approval or commercialize our products,
including:

= regulators may not authorize us or our investigators to commence @ clinical mial or conduct a clinical trial
al a progpective trial site:

= the failure to successfully complete pre-clinical testing requirements required by the FDA and international
organizations;

= delays may occur in reaching, or fail to reach, agreement on acceptable clinical tral contracts with third
parties or clinical trial protocols with prospective trial sites, the terms of which can be subject to extensive
negotiation and may vary significantly among different trial sites:

& the cost of clinical trials of our products may be greater than we anticipate;
e delays or difficulties in obtainmg an FDA No Objection letter for human consumption of our algal

hiomass; and

11 we are required 1o conduct addittonal chimical trials or other testing of our biotech product candidates under
development or algal biomass beyond those that we contemplate, if we are unable to successfully complete clinical trials
of our product candidates under development or algal biomass or other testing, if the results of these trials or tests are not
favorable or if there are safety concerns, we may, o our existing or future licensees may:

. not obiain marketing approval at all;
= be delaved in oblaining marketing approvals in o junisdiction; or
s b subject to sdditional post-markcting testing requirements.
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Tncreased regulatory seruting of nntritional supplements as well as new regulations that are beinig adopted in some of
our markets with respect to nutvitional supplements could result in wore restrictive regulations and harm onr resules
if our supplements or advertising activities are found fo vislate existing or new regulations or {ff we are not able 10
#ffect necessary cﬁﬂngrs re nwpw&m in a fimely and gfficient manner fo respend to new regulations.

There has been an increasing movement in the United States and other markets 1o increase the regulation of
dictary supplements, which could imposc additional restrictions or requircmcnts on us and increase the cost of doing
business. On February 11, 2019, the FDA issued a statement from FDA Commissioner, Dr, Seott Gotilieb, regarding the
agency's efforts to strengthen the regulation of dietary supplements. The FDA wall be prioritizing and focusing resources
on mishranded products bearing unproven claims 1o treat, cure, or mitigate disease. Commissioner Gottlich established a
Dictary Supplement Working Group tasked with reviewing the agency’s organizational structure, process, procedures,
and practices to identify opporunities to modernize the oversight of dietary supplements. Additionally, on December 21,
2015, the FDA created the Office of Dictary Supplements (“ODSP”). The creation of this new office elevaies the FDAs
program from its previeus status as a division under the Office of Nutnition and Dictary Supplements. ODSP wall
continee 10 monitor the safery of dictary supplements.

In August 2016, the FDA published its revised draft guidance on Dictary Supplements: New Dietary Ingredient
Natifications and Related Issues. If a company sells a dictary supplement containing an ingredient that FDA considers
either not a dietary ingrediemt or a new dietary ingredient (“NDI") that needs an NDI notification, the agency may
threaten or initiste enforcement against such company. For example. it might send & wamning lener that can trigger
consumer lawsuits, demand a product recall, or even work with the Department of Justice to bring a eriminal action. Cur
operations could be harmed if new guidance or regulations require us o reformulate products or effect new registrations,
il regulatory authorities make determinations that any of our producis do not comply with applicable regulatory
requirements, if the cost of complying with regulatory requirements increases materially, or if we are not able 1o effect
necessary changes to our products in a timely and efficient manner to respond to new regulations. [n sddition, our
operations could be harmed if governmental laws or regulations are enacted that restrict the ability of companies to
markel or distnbute nutritional supplements or impose additional burdens or requirements on nutntional supplement
companies,

The growtlr of onr agtech sector depends in part on market acceptance of products that contain our algae.

The suceess of our agtech business involves the use of our algal biomass in various animal and human products,
There can be no assurance regarding the suceessful distribution and market acceptance of produects contaiming our algac.
The expenses or losses associated with lack of market accepiance of our products could harm our ability to find or

mainlain new licensees for these products.

If our computer systems are hacked, or we experience any other cybersecurity incident, we may face a divruption fo
onr operations, a compremise or corrupiion ef our mﬁd’nﬂlf information and’or damage fo our bBusimess

relationships, all of which conld negarively impact onr bisiness, results of operations or financial condition.

We rely on information technology networks and systems, including the Intermet, 10 process, transmit and store
clectronic information, and 1o manage or support a varicty of business processes and activities. Additienally, we collect
and store certain data, including proprictary business information, and may have access 1o confidential or personal
information in certain of our businesscs thal is subject to privacy and security laws and regulations. These technology
networks and systems may be susceptible to damage, disruptions or shutdowns due 1o failures during the process of
upgrading or replacing software, databases or components: power outages: telecommunications or system farlures;
torronist attacks; natural disasters; employee error or malfeasance; server or cloud provider breaches; and computer
viruses or cyvberallacks. Cybersecunty threats and incidents can range from uncoordinated individual attempts 10 gain
unauthorized access to information technology networks and systems to more sophisticated and targeted measures,
known as advanced persistent threats, directed at us, our products, customers and’or our third-pany service providers, It
s possible a sceunty breach could resuli in thefi of rade scercis or other nicllcctual property or disclosure of
confidential customer, supplier or emplovee information. Should we be unable to prevent security breaches or other
damage to our information technology systems, disruptions could have an adverse effect on our operations, as well as
expose us to costly litigation, liability or penalties under privacy laws, increased cybersecurity protection costs,
reputational damage and product farlure.

The animial health fndustry is highly competitive.

The ammal health industry is highly competitive. Our competitors include standalone animal health businesses,
the animal health businesses of large pharmaceutical companics, specialty animal health businesses and companies that
mainly produce generic products. We believe many of our competitors are conducting R&D activities in areas served by
our products and in areas in which we are developing products. Several new start-up companics also compete in the
animal health indusiry, We also face competition from manufaciurers of drugs globally, as well as producers of
nuintional health products, These competitors may have access to greafer financial, markeiing, technical and other
resources. As a result, they may be able to devole more resources to developing, manufacturing, marketing and selling
their products, initiating of withstanding substantial price competition of more readily taking advantage of acquisitions or
other opportunitics,




Competitive pressure could arise from, among other things, more favorable safety and efficacy product profiles,
limited demand growth or a significant number of addinonal competitive products bemng introduced into a particular
markel, price reductions by competitors, the ability of competitors o capitalize on their sconomies of scale, the abality of
competitors to produce or otherwise procure animal health products at lower costs than us and the ability of competitors
o access more of newer lechnology than us,

Our R&D relies on evaluations of mwimals, which may become subject to bans, additional restrictive regulafions or
fircreased affention from activisne movemants,

Wi arc required to evaluate the effect of our product candidates in animals. Animal testing in certain industrics
has been the subject of controversy and adverse publicity. Some organizations and individuals have attempled 10 ban
animal testing or encourage the adoption of new regulations applicable to animal testing. To the extent that the activities
of such ergantzations and individuals are successful, our R&D, and by extension our business, financial condition and
results of operations, could be matenially adversely affected. In addition, negative publicity about us or our industry could
harm our reputation. For example, farm animal producers may expenience decreased demand for their producis or
reputational harm as a result of evolving consumer views of animal rights, nutritton, health-related or other concems.
Any reputational harm to the farm animal industry may also extend to companics in related industrics, including our
Company. Adverse consumer views related to the use of one or more of our product candidates in farm animals also may
result in a decrease in the use of such products and could have a matenial adverse effect on our aperating results and
financial condition.

Use of social medin could give rise to Mrbii'i‘l)- or reputafional harm.

We and our employees use social media 1o communicate externally, There is risk that the use of social media by
us or gur employees to communicate sbout our product candidates or business may give rise 10 liability, lead to the loss
of trade scerets or other intellectual property or result in public exposure of personal information of our employees,
clinkcal trial patients, customers, and others. Furthermore, negative posts or comments aboul us or our product candidates
in social media could seriously damage our reputation, brand image, and goodwill. Any of these events could have a
material adverse effect on our business, prospects, operating resulis, and financial condition and could adversely affect
the price of our common stock.

Risks Relating to Our Intellectual Property

We wiay net be able to protect enr proprietary algae cultures and bivactive coni d% in the markerplace

Our success will depend, in part. on our ability 10 obtain palents, protect our trade secrets and operate withoul
mfringing on the proprictary rights of others. We rely upon a combination of patents, trade sccoret protection, and
confidentiality agreements to protect the intellectual property of our products. Patents might not be issued or granted with
respect 1o our patent applications that are currently pending, and issued or gramed patents might later be found to be
invalid or unenforceable, be interpreted in a manner that does nat adequately protect our products or any future products,
or fail to otherwise provide us with any competitive advantage. As such, we do not know the degree of future protection
that we will have on our products, if any, and a failure to obiain adequate mtellectual property protection with respect to
our produets could have a material adverse impact on our business,

Patent protection may not be availuble for some of the therapeutic candidates or products we are developing. If
we must spend significant tme and money protecting or enforcing our patents, designing around patents held by others
of licensing, potentially for large fees, patents or other proprictary rights held by others, our business, results of
operations and financial condition may be harmed.

Claims of intellectual property infringament by or against us conld seriously harm our businesses.

From time 1o time, we may be forced to respond to or prosecute intellectual property infringement claims to
defiend or protect our rights. These claims, regardless of merit, may consume valuable management time, result in costly
litigation or cause product shipment delavs. Any of these factors could seriously harm our business and operating resulis,
We may have to enter into royalty or licensing agreements with third parties who claim infringement. These royalty or
licensing agreements, if available, may be costly to us, If wie are unable to enter into royalty or licensing agreements with
satisfactory terms, our business could suffer.




Risks Related to Our Commeon Stock

There can be no assurance that we will be able to comply with Nasdaq's contimued listing standards, a failure of
which could result in a de-listing of our common stock.

There is no assurance that we will continue to comply with the applicable Nasdag listing standards. In order to
maintain the listing of our common steck, par value $0.001 per share (the “common stoek™) and warrants on Nasdag,
Nasdag requires that the trading price of a company’s listed stock on Nasdag remain above one dollar in order for such
stock to remain listed. If a listed stock trades below one dollar for more than 30 consceutive trading days, then it is
subject to delisting from Masdag, together with any related warrants histed on Nasdag. In addition, 1o mamtain a listing on
Nasdag, we must satisfy mimnimum I’nam:::l ml other canlmued listing mqu:re-mm:s and standards, including those
regarding director independence and independent ¢ g 1 kholders’ equity, and cenain
corporate governance requirements, If we are unable to mnsl’y lhcs: requirements or standards, we could be subject 1o
delisting, which would have a negative effect on the price of our common stock and warrants and would impair your
ability o z¢ll or purchase our common stock and warrants when vou wish to do so. In the event of a delisting, we would
cxpect o take actions to restore our compliance with the listing requirements, but we can provide no assurance that any
such action taken by us would allow our common stock and/er warranis to become listed again, stabilize the market price
or improve the liquidity of our common stock, prevent our commen stock from dropping below the minimum bid price
requirement, or prevent future non-compliance with the listing requirements.

The market price and rrading volume of onr securities may be volanle and may be affected by economic condirions
bevond our control.

The market price of our securities is hikely to be volanle. Some specific factors that could negatively affect the
price of our securities or result in fluctuations inits price and trading volume include:

= resulls of inals of our product candidates;

e resulis of irals of our competitors” producs;

& regulatory actions with respect to our therapeutic candidates or products or our competitors’ products;
»  actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly operating resulis or those of our competitors;

= our failure or the failure of our competitors 1o meet analysis’ projeciions or guidance that we or our
competitors may give to the market;

. issuances by us of debt or equity securtiies;

«  litigation invelving our Company. including stockholder litigation: investigations or audits by regulators
into the eperations of our company: of proceedings initiated by our competitors or clients;

s  strategic decisions by us or our competitors, such as acquisitions, divestitures, spin-offs, joint ventures,
strategic investmients or changes in business strategy;

= frading volume of our common stock;

. announcement or expectation of additional financing efforts;

e ermonist acts, acts of war or periods of widespread civil unrest;
o pawral disasters and otber calamities;

»  changes in market conditions for biotech or agtech stocks;

= influence of retail investors andor social media on our common stock, such as a massive short squecie
rally: and

e conditions in the U.S. financial markets or changes in general economic conditions.

Our principal stockholders and managenent own a significant percentage of our stock and will be able to exert
significant control aver matters subject to stockholder approval.

As of December 31, 2022, our largest sharcholder, HEP Investments, LLC (“HEP™ or “HEP Investments™),
beneficially owns approximately 18% of our commen siock. Therefore, HEP Investments will have the ability to
influence us through this ownership position. This stockholder may be able 1o determine all matters requiring stockholder
approval, including elections of directors, amendments of our organizational documents, or approval of any merger, sale
of assets, or other major corporate transaction. This may prevent or discourage unselicited acquisition proposals or offers
for our common stock that an individual may believe are in the stockholders’ best interest.




Our management hax identified certain infernal contral deficioncies, wiich management believes constifute material
wieaknesses. Qur faflure fo establish and maditain an effective system of internal controls conld result in material
misstatements of our financial statements or cause us to fail fo meet our raporting obligations or fail to prevent fraud
i which case, onr stockiiolders could lose confidence in our financial reporting, which would harm our business and
conld negatively impact the price of our commeon stock,

Wie review and update our intemal controls, disclosure controls and procedures, and corporate governance
palicies as our Company confinues Lo evolve. In addition, we are required io comply with the internal conirol evaluation
and ceriificaiion requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“SOX™) and management is required o
repon annually on our intermal control over financial reporting. Our independent registered public accounting firm will
not be required to formally attest 1o the eflectiveness of our intemnal control over financial reporting pursuant 1o Section
404 of SOX until the date we are no longer & “smaller reponting company™ as defined by applicable SEC rules.

i's cvaluation of the effectiveness of our mtemal controls over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2022 concluded that our controls were not effective, due 10 material weaknesses resuliing from an
neffective overall control environment. The material weaknesses stem primanly from our small size and mclude the
inahility to (i) maintain appropriatcly designed information technology general conwrols in the ancas of user access,
vendor management controls, and segregation of duties, including controls over the recording of joumal entries, related
to certain information technology svstems that support the Company's financial reporting process; and (i) design and
maintain effective controls over complex accounting arcas and related disclosures including income tax . stock-based
compensation, and deferred research and development obligations - participation agreements, Specifically, management
did not identify controls over the review of the tax provision, including the valuation analysis relating to deferred tax
assels, consiwderations for uncertain tax positions, the preparation of income tux footnote and required disclosures and
selecting and applying accounting policies, proper review of the financial statements and the application of GAAP
relating 1o the accounting and classification of deferred rescarch and development obligations - participation agreements,
Management did not identify controls over the review of stock-based compensation, including the valuation of options
granted under the Company ‘s equity-based compensation plans.

The effects of the accounting errors related o stock-based compensation and income taxes resulied in a revision
of our annual report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2021, Please see “Note 2 - Revision of Previously
Issued Financial Statements” for more information.

Such shoncemings could have an adverse effect on our business and financial resulis. Any svstem of internal
controls, hewever well designed and operated, is based in part on certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable,
not absolute, assurances that the objectives of the system are met. Any failure or circumvention of the controls and
procedures or fulure to comply with regulation concerning control and procedures could have a material cffect on our
business, results of operation and financial condition. Any of these cvents could result in an adverse reaction in the
financial marketplace duc to a loss of investor confidence in the reliability of our financial statements, which ultimatcly
could negatively afTect the market price of our shares, increase the volatility of our stock price and adversely affect our
ability to raise additional funding. The effect of these events could also make it more difficult for us 1o attract and retain
qualificd persons to servie on our Board and as executive officers,

Subject to limitations on liguidity, the Company is planning to take steps fto remediate these matenal
weaknesses, However, we cannot assure you that any of the measures we implement to remedy any such deficiencies will
effectively mitigate or remedy such deficiencies,

As a snaller reporting contpaniy, we are subject to scaled dizclosiire requirénients that way wake it nrore challenging
Jor inivestors te analyze our results of operations and financial prospects.

Currently, we are a “smaller reporting company,” as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act, As a “smaller
reporiing company,” we are able o provide simplified executive compensation disclosures m our filings and have certain
other decreased disclosure obligations in our filings with the SEC, including being required to provide only two years of
audited financial statements in anneal reports. Conscquently, it may be more challenging for investors to analyze our
resuilts of operations and financial prospects.

Furthermore, we are a non-accelerated filer as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act, and, as such, are not
required to provide an auditor atiesiation of management’s asscssment of internal control over financial reporting, which
is generally required for SEC reporting companies under Scction 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Because we are not
required to, and have not, had our auditor's provide an attestation of our management’s asscssment of internal control
over financial reporting, a material weakness in intermal controls may remain undetected for a longer peried.




Our annual and guartedy operating results may [Tuctuate significantly or may fall below the expeciations of investars
ar securifies analysts, each of which may canse onr stock price to fluctuate or decline.

We expect our operating results to be subject to annual and quanterly fluctuations. Cur net loss and other
operating results will be alfected by numerous factors, including:

e vanations in the level of expenses related 1o our product candidates, products or fidure development
programs;

= if any of our product candidates recerves regulatory approval, the level of underlyving demand for these
product candidates and whalcsalers” buying pattorns;

= addition or termination of trials or funding suppor:

®  our execution of any collaborative, licensing or similar arrangements, and the timing of payments we may
make or receive under these arrangements;

= any intcllectual property infringement lawsuit i which we may become involved:
s regulatory developments affecting our products or those of our competitors,

= the timing and cost of, and level of investment in, rescarch and development activities relating 10 our
product candidates, which may change from time to tine;

= our ability to attract, hire and retain qualified persoancl;

= expenditures that we will or may incur to scquire or develop additional product candidites and
technologics;

®  [uture accounting pronouncements or changes in our accounting policies; and

»  the timing and swccess or fmilure of clinical studies for our therapeutic candidates or competing product
candidates, or any other change in the competitive landscape of our indusiry, including consolidation
AMONg OUr CompLlitors or parners.

If our annual or quanterly operating results fall below the expectations of investors or securities analysts, the
price of our securitics could decline substantially. Furthermore, any annual or quarterly fluctuations in our operating
resulis may. in tum, cause the price of our stock te (luctunte substantially. We believe that annual and quanerly
comparisons of our financial resulis are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indication of our
future performance.

Raising additional funds through debt or equity financing could be dilutive and may cause the market price af our
commion wack to decline.

Ta the extent that we raise additional capital through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities, your
ownership interest may be diluted, and the terms of these securities may include liguidation or other preferences that
adversely allect your righis as a stockholder. Debi (inancing, if available, may involve agreements that include covenanis
limiting or restricting our ability to take certain actions, such as incurring debi, making capital expenditures or declaring
dividends. I we mise additional funds through collsborations, strategic collaborations or partnerships, or marketing,
distribution or licensing arrangements with third parties, we may be required to limit valuable rights to our intellectual
property, technologies, therapeutic candidates or future revenue streams, of grant licenses or other rights on terms that are
not favorable 1o us. Furthermore, any additional fundraising efforts may divert our management from their day-to-day
activities, which may adversely affect our ability to develop and commercialize our therapeutic candidates.

Sales of o substantial number of shares af our commaon stock in the public market could canse our stock price to fall.
Sales of a substantial number of shares of our commen stock in the public market or the perception that these
sales might occur, could depress the market price of our common stock and could impair our ability to raise capial

through the sale of additional equity securities. We are unable to predict the effect that sales may have on the prevailing
market price of our common stock_
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Fiuture sales and issnances of onr conmion steck or rights to pirchase owr cominon stock, including pursuant ro our
equity fncentive plans, could result fn additional dilution of the percentage ovwnership of onr stockholders and could
canse our stock price to fall,

We expect that significant additional capital will be needed in the future 1o continuc our planned operations, To
the extent we raise additional capital by issuing equity securitics, our stockholders may experience substantial ditution,
We may sell our commeon stock, convertible securities or other equity securities in one or more transactions ai prices and
in a manner we determine from time to time. If we sell our common stock, convertible secunfies or other equity
secunities in more than one transaction, investors may be materially diluted by subsequent sales. These sales may also
result in material dilufion to our existing stockholders, and new nvestors could gain rights superior to our existing
stockholders,

e are at risk of linigation.

As described in “ltem 3 - Legal Proceedings,” we are party to an arbitration dispute with AEGLE Partners, 2
LLC. Additionally, in the past. sccuritics class action litigation has often been brought against o company following a
decline in the market price of iis secuniies. This nsk is especially relevant for us because biolechnology companics have
experienced significant stock price volatility in recent vears. If we face such litigation, it could result in substantial costs
and a diversion of management’s attention and resources, which could harm our business.

Additionally, on January 1. 2022 we terminated our former Chiell Executive Officer for couse, and do not
believe that we owe him any severance payments, However, we have not yet reached an agreement with him related to
his departure.

Even if we successfully defend against these claims, Itigation could result in substantial costs place a significant
stramn on our Bnancial resources, divert the altention of management {fom our core business and harm our repuiation.

We da not intind to pay dividends on olir commeon stock so any returns will be Hmited to the value of onr stack,

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common steck. We currently anticipate that we will
retain future camings for the development, operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate declaring or
paying any cash dividends for the forcsccable future. Any return to stockholders will therefore be limited to the
appreciation of their stock.

Ttem 1B, Unresolved Staff Commenis.
Not required for smaller reporting companies.
Item 2. Properties.

The Company’s principal excoutive office 15 Jocated at 21 East Long Lake Road, Suite 100, Bloomficld Hills,
M1 48304 1o a facility where we lease roughly 4,800 square feet. We believe that our existing facilitics are adequate for
our current needs. If we defermine thai additional or new facilities are needed in the future, we believe that sufficient
opiions would be available to us on commercially reasonable terms, We also lease a laboratory and office (roughly 2,700
square feet) at 608 Danley Drive, Unit #1, Fort Myers, FL 33907

Iem 3. Legal Proceedings.

On April 13, 2022, AEGLE Partners, 2 LLC (“AEGLE") initisted an arbitration in Michigan against the
Company with the Amcrican Arbitration Association. AEGLE assened claims related 0 a cortam Supply Chain
Consulting Agreement entered into between AEGLE and the Company in 2019 {as amended from time to time, the
“Agr "), and a disagr between AEGLE and the Company regarding whether AEGLE is entitled to payment
of cortain tecs and warranis pursuand to the Agreement, AEGLE's complaint secks, among other things, three times the
payment of such alleged fees and warrants and recovery of AEGLE's costs and expenses. We believe that the claims
made by AEGLE in its complaint are without merit and we intend to vigorously defend ourselves against them.
Arbitration is presently scheduled to begin in April 2023,

Additionally, the Company may be subject to various claims, complaints, and legal actions that arisc from time
to time in the normal course of business, There can be no assurance that existing or future legal proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of business or otherwise will not have o material adverse effect on the Company ‘s business, financial
pasilion, results of operations, or cash flows,

Ttem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.




PART I

Irem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Market Information

Our shares of common stock and our warrants irade on the Nasdag Capital Market under the symbaol “ZIVO™
and “ZIVOW", respectively.

Holders

As of March 1, 2023, there were approximately 224 holders of record of our common stock. The number of
holders of record is based on ihe actual number of holders regisiered on the books of our transfer ageni and does noi
reflect holders of shares in “street name™ or persons, partnerships, associations, corporations, or other entitics identified
in seourity position listings maintined by depository trust companics.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid any cash dividends on our commaon stock since our inception and do not anticipate paying any
cash dividends in the foresceable future, We plan to retain our carnings, if any, to provide funds for the expansion of our
business.

Ttem 6. [Reserved]
Ttem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The foifowing discussion of owr financial condition and resulis of operations should be read in confunction with onr
fmancial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Ammal Report on Form [0.X This dischssion contans
cerfatn forward.-fooking stafemenis that invelve risk and uncerfainties. Onr actual reswlts may differ materially from
thase dizenzzed below. Foctors that conld cause or comtribute fo such differences include, buf are not iimited fo, thoze
identifted balow and thoze set forth wnder the section titled "Risk Factors,” and other dociments we fife with the SEC.
Hurarteal resnlts are nor necessarily mdicative af future results

Overview

‘Wi have put in place a business model in which we may derive future income from licensing and sclling natural
bivactive ingredients including algal biomass and products that may be derived from or are initially based on the algal
biomazs. We expect that these planned new products will likely be sold or licensed to much larger, better-financed
human and animal pharma companies, and to food, dictary supplement, and skin care manufacturers. The anticipated
income sireams are [0 be generated from a) sales of algal biomass or extracts thereof, and b) license payments in the form
of royaltics and / or other contractual payments for licensed natural bioactive ingredients. Our manufaciuning strategy 5
to create contract manufactarers for our non-licensed products which products will be sold by us to animal food, dictary
supplement, and medical food processors and'or name-brand marketers, Further, we expect to license our bicactive
molecules as lead compounds or templates for synthetic variants intended for therapeutic applications.

For our Wellmetrix, subsidiary, the Company s board of directons {the “Board”} and management agreed o halt
active product development and instead focus on prospective out-licensing of the existing IP, consisting of a patent and
several patents pending. An engoing commitment to paient prosecution and mainienance of the existing patent porifolio
has been approved by the Board.

Financial Overview
General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist primarnly of personnel-related costs for personncl in functions nod
dircctly associated with rescarch and development activities, professional foes and consul expenses, and other
overhead spending. Personnel related costs include cash compensation, benefits, and stock-based compensation expenses,
Professional fees and consultant expenses consist primarily of legal fees relating to corporate maners, intellecrual
property costs. professional fees for I assisting with regulatory, and financial matters. Other overhead spending
includes cost to support infermation technology, rent, nsurances, public company listing, and supplies.
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We anticipate that our general and administrative expenses will significantly increase in the future to support
our continued research and development activities, potential commercializanion of our product candidates, hiring of
additional personnel, legal and professional services, and other public company related costs.

Research and Developuent

Rescarch and development expenses are incurred in developing our product candidates, compensation and
benefits for research and development employees, including stock-based compensation, research related overhead
expenses, cosl of laboratory supplies, chnical inal and related clinical manufactunng expenses, costs related 1o regulatory
operations, fees paid to rescarch consultants and other owside expenscs. Rescarch and development costs are expenscd as
incurred and costs incurred by third parties are expensed as the comracted work is performed.

We expect our rescarch and development expenses to significantly increase over the next several years as we
continue to develop product candidates targeting additional pharma and algal biomass applications. These additional
activities will increase the need to conduct preclinical testing and elinical irials and will depend on the duration, costs and
timing to complete our preclinical progrums and clinical trials.

Interest Expense

Interest expense primarily consists of interest costs related 1o our convertible notes and for interest on short term
debt, as discussed in detail below.

Other Incone

Other income consists of procecds derived from activity outside of normal operating activity, including the
forgiveness of the paycheck protection program loan in 2021.

Results of Operations
Comparisen of Year Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

The following table summarizes our results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

Year ended December 31,
2022 pH |
Revenue: ... - 5 @
Total revenue . - & -
Cosis and expenses:
General and administrative 6,491,704 6,604,619
Research and development 2340270 1,950,500

Total costs and cxpenses... .8 RIINT4 5 R645119
L0ss From OPETatiOns ....o.oommrs e mssmssssimmssmss ssss s sssmsissnicsississ s 3 (8, 131,974) § (R645,119)
Ohher income {cxpensc):

IIVCTeS AN POIBY cu o dox ihaassiianiii v amin s sisdiias {13,319) (233.282)
Gain on forgiveness of debt and accrucd intercst .. - 122,520
Total other {expense), net =] (133190 8§ (110,762)
. & (B.745.293) § (%,755881)

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses were 6.5 million for the 12 months ended December 31, 2022, which
is about 200,000 lower than the approximately $6.7 million for the comparable prior period. explained by the following
changes: a deorcase of §1.4 million in salary expense (900,000 non-cash decrease due to stock options issued to
cmployees and roughly SS00,000 decrease in cash compensation), and an increase in overhead expense of $1.2 million
{including S460.000 increase in insurance, 3660000 increase in legal and accounting fees, and 5450,000 increase in
board of directors fees; these increases were partially offset by a reduction in travel and other expenses of $1.20,000).

Research and Development Expenses

For the 12 months ended December 31, 2022, we incurred $2.2 million in net R&D expenses, as compared to
52.0 million for the comparable period in 2021,
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OF these expenses, all $2.2 million for 2022 and $2.0 million for 2021 are costs associated with research relating
1o our biotech and aglech businesses, OF these costs m 2022, $1.5 million is for salary and other internal costs, an
increase of approximately 700,000 from the prior year. The increase is fully explained by higher stock related
compensation costs. Third party rescarch and development spending of $1.4 million was $250,000 lower than the prior
vear due to fewer third-party research studies, For the vear ending December 31, 2022, the Company recognized a
reduction in gross research and development spending of roughly 3775000 10 account for the amonization of the
spending obligation ereated through the complete funding of the Participation Agreements, roughly $220,000 higher than
the amount research and development was reduced in 2021, (See Note 9 Deferred R&D Obligations - Participatian
Agreements)

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Labor and other internal expenscs e ] 1,582,628 § 832,221
External rescarch expenses ., 1,451,667 1,674,025
Total gross R&D expenses ., . ] 3014295 8 2,506,246
Less contra-cxpense for amortization of deferred R&D obligation - Participation
Agreements. (774.025) {555, 746)
IHEU RBEDD SXPEOBER ....coovuiousmiinsinn s s sinimsinsrasis avamssaiias s i i s s s amsansansasisasmsianss 2240270 § 1,950,500

Subject to the availability of funding, we expect our R&D costs to grow as we work to complete the rescarch in
the development of natural bioactive compounds for use as dictary supplements and food igredients, as well as biologics
for medicinal and pharmaceutical applications i humans and animals. The Company’s scientific efforts presently are
focused on the licensing products for healthy immune responsc in livestock and growing of our proprictary algal culre
in commercial scale facilitics,

Liguidity and Capital Resources
Histerical Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2022, our principal source of liquidity consisted of cash deposits of $1.8 million., We expect
o continue 1o incur significant expenses and increasing operating and net losses for the forcsecable future until and
unless we generate an adequate level of revenue from potential commercial sales to cover expenses.

‘We anticipate that our expenses will increase substantially as we develop and seck to commercialize our product
candidates and continue to pursue pre-clinical and clinical trials, scek regulatory approvals, manufaciure product
candidates, hire additional stafl, add operational, financial and management systems and continue to operate as a public

company.

Our source of cash w dare has been procecds from the ssuances of notes, common stock with and withour
warrants and unsecured loans, and the entry into Participation Agreements, the terms of which are further descnibed
below. See also “Finding Regquirements and Ouileak™ below,

Tumae 26021 Underwritten Public Offering

On May 27, 2021, we entered inte an Underwriting Agreement relating to the issuance and sale of 2,760,000
Units, at a price 1o the public of $5.00 per Unit. In addition, under the terms of the Undervwriting Agreement, we granted
the Underwriter an option, excrcisable for 45 days, to purchase up 1o an additional 414,000 shares of common stock
and/or 414,000 2021 Warrants, in any combination thereof, on the same terms. The base offering closed on June 2, 2021,
and the sale of 150,000 shares of common stock subject o the Underwniter's overallotment option closed on July 2,
2021, The gross procecds from this offering were approximately $14.5 million prier w deducting underwriting discounts
and other offering expenses payable by us,

Cervertible Notes
On June 2, 2021, pursuant to the terms of several Debt Extension and Conversion Agreements with holders of
our 11% convertible debt, a total of $7.538 356 comprised of outstanding principal of 54,940,342 and interest of

£2,598,214 of our converible notes were automatically converted into 942,322 sharcs of commaon stock at $8.00 per
share.
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Deferred R&D Obligations - Participation Agreaments

From April 13, 2020, through May 14, 2021, the Company entered into twenty-one License Co-Development -
Participation Agreements (the “Participation Agreements”) with certain accredited investors (“Participants™) for an
aggregate of $2,985.000, The Participation Agreements provide for the issuance of warranis to such Panicipanis and
allows the Participants 1o participate in the fees (the “Fees™) from licensing or selling bioactive ingredients or molecules
derived from ZIVO's algae coltures. Specifically, ZIVO has agreed o provide to the Participants a 44.775% “Revenue
Share™ of all license fees generated by ZIVO from any licensee,

The Panticipation Agreements allow the Company the option to buy back the right, title and intcrest in the
Revenue Share for an amount equal 1o the amount funded plus a forty percent (40%) premium, if the option is exercised
less than 18 months following execution, and for cither fory (40%) or fifly percent (50%5) if the option is exercised more
than 1% months following execution. Pursuant to the terms of twelve of the Participation Agreements, the Company may
not exercise its option until it has paid the Participants a revenue share equal to a minimum of thirty percent {30%) of the
amount such Participant’s todal payment amouni. Pursuant 1o the terms of the one of the Participation Agreements, the
Company may not exercise its option until it has paid the Participant a revenue share equal 1o a minimum of one hundred
forty percent (140%) of the amount such Participant’s total payment amount. Five of the Participation Agreements have
no minimum threshold payment. Once this minimum threshold is met, the Company may exercise its option by
delivering written notice to a Participant of its intent to exercise the option, along with repayment terms of the amount
funded, which may be paid, in the Company’s sole discretion, in one lump sum or in four (4) equal quarterly payments, If
the Company does not make such gquarterly payments imely for any quarier, then the Company shall pay the prorale
Revenue Share amount, retroactive on the entire remaining balance owed, that would have been camed during such
quarter until the default payments have been made and the payment schedule is no longer in default.

Unzecired Loan:

From January 1, 2021 10 December 31, 2022, the Company received gross proceeds of $819, 100 in unsecured
loans. As of December 31, 2022, no principal and accrued inferest remained ootstanding under such loans,

Private Placements

Between January 1, 2021 and December 31, 2022, we entered into Subscription Agreements with accredited
imvestors pursuant 10 which we, in private placements, issued and sold an aggregate of 144,128 shares of common stock
for gross proceeds in the amount of 51,564,969,

Payeheck Protection Program Loan

In connection with the 2020 Coronavirus Aid, Relicf, and Economic Sccurity ("CARES Act”™), the Company
received loan funding of approximately $121,700 under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP™). which was forgiven
by the U.S. Small Business Administration on Scptember 9. 2021.

Funding Requirements and Outlook
At December 31, 2022, we had approximately $1.8 million in cash depasits.

Management has noted the existence of substantial doubt about our ahility 1o continue as a going concem,
Additionally, our independent registered public accounting firm included explanatory paragraphs in the repons on our
financial statements a5 of and for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, noting the existence of
substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concem, Our existing cash may not be sufficient to fund our
operating expenses through at least twelve months from the date of this filing. To continue to fund operations, we will
need o secure addinonal funding through public or privale equily or debt financimgs, through collaborations or
parmnerships with other companies or other sources. We may not be able to raise additional capital on terms acceptable o
us, or at all. Any failure to raise capital when needed could compromise our ability to execute on our business plan, If we
are unable to raise additional funds, or if our anticipated operating results are not achieved. we believe planned
expenditures may need o be reduced in order to extend the time period that existing resources can fund our eperations. If
we are unable to obiain the necessary capital, it may have a maienial adverse effect on our operations and the
development of our technology, or we may have 1o cease operations altogether.

Our matcrial cash requirements relate to the funding of our ongoing product development. Sce “Jiemr J-
Business-Clinteal Development and Regulatory Patineay-Clinical Experience, Fumre Development and Clinieal Trial
Plas™ in this Repon for a discussion of design, development. pre-clinical and clinical activities that we may conduct in
the future, mcluding expected cash expenditures required for some of those activities, 1o the extent we are able to
estimate such costs,
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The development of our product candidates 15 subject to numerous uncertainties, and we could use our cash
resources sooner than we expect. Additionally. the process of development is costly, and the timing of progress in pre-
clinical tests and clinical trials is uncertain, Our ability to successfully ransition to profitability will be dependent upon
achieving further regulatory approvals and achieving a level of product sales adequate 1o suppon our cost structure, We
cannol assure you that we will ever be profitable or generate positive cash flow from operating activities.

Cash Flows

Cash Flows from Operating Acitvittes. During the 12 months ended December 31, 2022, our operating activitics
used £7.1 million in cash, an increase of cash used of roughly $300,000 from the comparable prior period. The
approximate $300,000 increase in cash used by operating activitics was primarily attributable 1o the following (all of
which are approximated): a $10,000 decrease in net loss, a decrease i non-cash expenses of $350,000 (a decrease of
stock issued for services of 8310000, an increase in of gain on forgiveness of debt of $123,000, and an increase n
amortization of lease lability of $60,000), and S100,000 lower use of cash for changes in assets and habilitics (S835,000
less cush from sssuance of deferred R&D obligations, S220,000 of amortization of deferred R&D obligations, a net
increase in accounts payable and accrued labilities of $190,000, and lewer lease related habilitics and prepaid expenses
of $70,000),

Cazh Flow: from Inmvesting Aetrvites. During the 12 months ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no

mvesling achivilies.

Cazh Flows from Fimancing Aefivittes. During the 12 months ended December 31, 2022, we generated no cash
from financing activities, compared to 515.6 million provided in the prior year.

We estimate that we would requine approximately 55 million in cash over the next 12 imonths in order to fund
our basic operations, excluding our R&D initiatives. Based on this cash requirement, we have a near term need for
additional funding to continue to develop our products and intellectual property, Historically, we have had substantial
difficulty raising funds from external sources. If we are unable to raise the required capital, we will be forced to curtail
our business operations, mcluding our R&D activities, The followmg table shows a summary of our cash flows for the
periods indicated:

Twelve months ended
December 31,
2022 2021
Nei cash provided by {used in):
Operating activities $(7.102,612) 5(6,803,333)
Investing activities. - .
Frmancing activilies - 15567346

e S(TLI02612) § 8764013

NWet increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Critical Accounting Extinates

Our management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is bascd on our
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the
United States of America, or GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us 1o make estimates,
Jjudgments and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilitics as of the dates of the balance shects and the reporied amounts of revenue and expenses duning the reporting
periods. In accordance with GAAP, we base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
we believe are reasonable under the circumstances at the time such cstimates are made. Actual resulis may differ
materially from our estimates and judgments under different assumptions or conditions. We periedically review our
cstimates in light of changes in circumstances, facts and experience. The effects of material revisions in eslimates are
reflected in our financial statements prospectively from the date of the change in estimate.

While our significant accounting policies are more fully deseribed in the notes to our financial statements

appearing elsewhere in this Report, we believe the following are the critical accounting policies used in the preparation
of pur financial statements that require significant estimates and judgments.
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Fair Value of Finanetal Iinstrumeits

We account for fair value measurements of assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a recurning or noarccurring basis adhering to the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB") fair value hicrarchy that prioritizes the inpauts 1o valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hicrarchy
gives the highest priority 10 unadjusted quoted prices in sctive markets for identical asscts or habilities (Level |
measurements) and the lowest priority w0 measurements involving  significant  unobservable inputs {Level 3
measurements), The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

»  Level | Inputs: Unadusted quoted prices in aciive markets for identical asseis or habilities accessible 1o
the Company at the measurement date.

e Level 2 lnputs: Other than quoted prices included in Level 1 inputs that are observable for the asset or
liability, cither direely or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability,

#  Level 3 Inputs: Unobservable inputs for the asset or lability used to measure fair value to the extent that
obscrvable inputs arc nol available, thereby allowing for situations 1n which there is ligtle, if any, market
activity for the asset or liability at measurement date.

As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, fair values of cash, prepaid, other assets, accounts payable
and acerued expenses approximated their caimying values because of the shor-lerm nature of these assets or Labilities.
We elected to account for the convertible notes while they were omztanding on a fair value basis under ASC 825 10
comprehensively value and streamline the accounting for the embedded conversion options. The fair value of these
convertible notes were based on both the fair value of our commen stock, discount associated with the embedded
redemption features, and cash flow models discounted a1 current implied market rates evidenced in recent arms-length
transactions representing expected returns by market participants for similar instruments and are based on Level 3 inputs.

Premium Conversion Derivatives

We evaluate all conversion and redemplion fealures contained in a debl instrument 1o determine iff there dre any
cmbedded derivatives that require scparation from the host debt instrument. An cmbedded derivative that requires
scparation is bifurcated from its hest debt instrument and a comesponding discount to the host debt instrument is
recorded. The discount is amortized and recorded to interest expense over the term of the host debt instrument using the
straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method. The separated embedded denvative is sccounted
for separately on a fair market value basis, Wi record the fair value changes of a separated embedded derivative at cach
reporiing period in the consolidated statcments of comprehensive loss as a fair value change in derivative and warrant
liabilities,

Stack-Based Compensation

We account for share-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC 718), Compensation - Stock Compensation.
Accordingly, compensation costs related to oquity instruments granted are recognieed at the gramt-date fair value. The
Company records forfeitures when they occur, Share-based compensation arrangements 1o non-employecs are accounied
for in accordance with the applicable provisions of ASC TI8,

Recent Aecounting Pronouncements

See “Note 4 - Summary of Significant Accommring Policies™ in this Repon regarding the impact of conain recent
accounting pronouncements on our financial statements,

liem TA. Cruantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.
Mot required for smaller reporting companies.
ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Reference is made to the Consolidated Financial Stmements, the Reponts thercon, and the Motes thercto,
commencing on page F-1 of this report, which Consolidated Financial Statements. Reponts. MNotes and data are

incorporated herein by reference.
Ttem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Ineomorated by reference to “Propesal No. ] - Rarification of Independent Registered Public Acconrithig Firm™
in the Registrant’s 2023 Proxy Statement 1o be fled within 120 days afler the Registrant’s fiscal year end.




Item 9A, Controls and Procedures.
Evaluarion of Disclosiire Controls and Procedires

Our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(c) or 15d-15(¢) under the Exchange Act) are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act
is recorded, processed, summartred, and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the
Securitics and Exchange Commission and to ensure that information required 1o be disclosed is accumulated and
communicated 1o management, including our principal exceutive and financial officers, 1o allow timely decisions
regarding disclosure. The Chielf Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as our principal financial and
aceounting officer, have reviewed the effectivencss of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K amd. based on their evaluation, have concluded that the disclosure controls
and prucniln;l were not effective as of such date duc to material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting,
described below,

Managenent's Report on Internal Control Over Finaneial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining sdequate internal control over financial reporting,
as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(1) of the Exchange Act, Our miemal control over financial reportng is a
process designed under the supervizsion of our Chief Exceutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finencial statements for external purposcs
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of s mherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not defect or provent
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness 1o future periods are subject to risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Management utilized the criteria established in the Internal Control - Integrated Framework (201 3) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0) o conduct an asscssment of the
elfectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, As previously reported, we
identificd material weaknesses that continued to exist at December 31, 2022, In addition, in connection with the sudit of
our consolidated financial staterments for the year ended December 31, 2022, we wdentified additional malerial
weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting, as described below,

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in mternal control over financial
reporting, such that there s a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a imely basis,

Material Weaknesses in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management has determined that the Company had the following material weaknesses in its intemal control
over financial reporting:

Control Environuntent, Risk Assessnent, and Monitoring

Management did not design and maintain appropriate entity-level controls impacting the control environment,
risk assessment procedures, and monitoring activitics to prevent or detect material misstaiements to the consolidated
financial statements. These deficiencies were attributed to: (i) lack of stnucture and responsibility, insufficient number of
qualified resources, and inadequate oversight and accountability over the performance of controls, (i) incffective
wentification and assessment or nsks impacting intemal control over financial reporting, and (i) incffective evaluation
and determination as to whether the components of intemal control were present and functioning.

Control Activities and Iinfermation aind Communication

1 muaterial w within cerlain business

These material weaknesses contributed to the following
processes and the information technology environment:

= Management did not design and maintain approprate information fechnology general controls in the areas
of user access, vendor management controls, and segregation of duties, meluding controls over the
recording and review of joumnal entrics, related to cenain information technology systems that support the
Company s linancial reporting process.

»  Management did not design, implement, and retain appropriate documentation of formal accounting
policies, procedures, and controls across substantially all of the company”s business processes over; (i) the
financial reporting process, incleding management review controls over key disclosures and financial
statement suppor schedules, (i) the monthly financial close process, including jowmal entrics and account
reconciliations and (iii) the completeness and accuracy of information used by control owners in the
operation of cerfain controls, o achicve timely, complete, accurate financial accounting, reporting.
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. Management did not design and implement controls over the accounting, classification, and application of
United States Generally Accounting Principles ("US GAAP™) relating to income taxes, stock-based
compensation, and deferred research and development obligations - participation agreements accounting,
Specifically:

*  Management did not identify controls over the review of the tax provision, including the
valuation analysis related 1o deferred tax assets, considerations for uncertain (ax positions, the
preparation of the income tax footnote and required disclosures and selecting and applying
accounting policies;

*  Management did not identify controls over the accounting and classification of deferred
rescarch and development obligations - participation agreements; and

& Management did not identify controls over the valuation of stock-based compensation for
option awards to employees and members of the board of direciors,

Based on the assczsment and identification of the material weaknesses described above, management has
conchuded that, as of December 31, 2022, our internal control over financial reporfing was not cffective and could lead to
a material misstatement of account balances or disclosures, Accordingly, management has concluded that these control
deficiencies constitute material weaknesses.

However, afier giving full consideration 19 these material weaknesses, and the additional analyses and other
procedures that we performed o ensure that our consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K were prepared in accordance with ULS. GAAP, our management has concluded that our consolidated
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, our financial position, results of operations and cash flows for
the periods disclosed in conformaty with U.S. GAAP.

Remediation

M has been impl ing and comti to implement measures designed 1o ensure that control
deficiencies contributing to the material weaknesses are remediated, such that these controls are designed, implemented,
andl operating effectively, The remediation actions include:

e Developing a training program and educating control owners conceming the principles of the Internal
Control - Integrated Framework (20013 issued by COSO;

s Impl ing a risk process by which management identifies risks of misstaternent related to
all account balances;

= Developing internal controls documentation, including comprehensive accounting policies and procedures
over finoncial processes and related disclosires;

. Enhancing policies and procedures to retain adequate documentary evidence for certain management
review controls over cortain busincss processes including precision of review and evidence of review
procedures performed to demonstrate effective operation of such controls;

»  Engaging outside resources for complex accounting matters and draffing and retaining position papers for
all complex. non-recurring transiclions;

»  Developing monitoring activities and profocols that will allow us to timely assess the design and the
operating effectiveness of controls over financial reporting and make necessary changes to the design of
controls, if any

= Segrepating key functions within our financial and mformation technology processes supporting our
internal controls over financial reporting;

*  Reassessing and formalizing the design of certain accounting and information technology policies relating
1o security and change management controls, including user access reviews, including assessing the need
for implementing a more robust information technology systemn;

*  Confinuing to enhance and formalize our accounting, business operations, and information technology
policies, procedures, and controls to achieve complete, accurate, and timely financial accounling, reporting
and disclosures.

Changes tn ternal Contrel Gver Financial Reporting

Except for the material weaknesses discussed above, there was no other ¢ in our infernal control ever
financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by Rule 13a-15(d) and 15d-13(d) of the
Exchange Act that occurred during the quarter, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.

ltem 9B. Other Information.
None,

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections.
Not applicable.
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PART I
Item 10, Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.
Incorporated by reference 1o “Proposal No. [ - Election of Directors - Management,” “Information with

Respect to the Board of Direcrors,” and “Manag " the Regi "5 2023 Proxy Statement to be filed within 120
days afier the Registrant’s fiscal year end.

ltem 11, Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference 1o “Everurive Compenzation™ in the Registrant’s 2023 Proxy Statement 1o be filed
within 120 days after the Registrant"s fiscal vear end.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.
Incorporated by reference to “Securify Ownership of Certain Beneficial Chners and Management and Related

Shareholder Matters™ in the Registrant’s 2023 Proxy Stmement to be filed within 120 days after the Registrant’s fiscal

year end.

ltem 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Incorporated by reference to “Cerfatn Relationsiips and Related Transactions"and “Propasal No. | - Election
af Directors "in the Registrant's 2023 Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the Registrant’s fiscal year end.,

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference 1o “Propozal No. 1 - Rartflearion of Independent Regisrered Pubite Aecownting Firm™
in the Registrant’s 2023 Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days afier the Registrant’s fiscal year end. Information
about aggregate fees billed to us by our principal accountant, BDM USA, LLP (FCAOB 1D No, 243) will be included
under the capiion “Independent Auditor Fees™ m ihe 2023 Proxy Swiement. and that information s incorporated by
reference herein.

PART IV

Ttem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
{a) (1) (2) Financial Staterents,

Financial Statements begin on page F-1 of this report,

All schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or Moles therelo,

(3) Exhibits,

EXHIBIT
NUMBER  DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

3.1 Aricles of Incorporation of the Registrant as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 22, 201 1)

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation dated October 16, 2014 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.12 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2014)

33 Centificate to Amendment dated May 28, 2021 (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 3.1 1o the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2021)

34 Amended and Restated By-lows of the Registrant {mcorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 3.2 1o the
Registrant’s Quarterly Repert on Form 10-0) filed on May 17, 2010)

33 Second Amended and Restated By-laws of the Registrant (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 3.1 w the
Registrant's Current Beport on Form 8-K filed on July 7, 2022)
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42"

43

44

45

0.1+

1.0, 1+

10,2+

10.3.]

1032

10.4+

10.5+

10.6

10.7

10.3*

1 b
23.1*

3L*

31.2*

Form of Warrant {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Annual Report en Form 10-
K filed on Apnil 22, 2022)

Form of Representative’s Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Repon on Form 8-K. filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 2, 2021)

Form of Commeon Stock Purchase Warrant by and between the Registrant and Direct Transfer LLC
(incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 4.2 1o the Regisirant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2,
2021)

Warramt Agency Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form 5-1/A filed on May 26, 2021)

2019 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,34 of the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 26, 2020)

Stock Oprion Grant Notice for 2009 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan {incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.37 of the Registrant"s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 26, 2020)

2021 Equity Incentive Plan {(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on February 16, 2022)

Supply Chain Agreement with Acgle Partners 2 LLC, dated February 27, 2019 (incorporated by reference
1o Exhibit 10,32 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-UA filed on May 26, 2021)

First Amendment to Supply Chain Agreement with Acgle Panners 2 LLC, dated September 14, 2019
{incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.39 1o the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed
on May 26, 2021)

Second Amendment to Supply Chain Agreement with Aegle Pariners 2 LLC, dated November 24, 2020
(incorporated by reference o Exhibit 10,40 10 the Regisirant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed
on May 26, 2021)

Employment Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2022, by and between John Payne and the Company
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form £-K filed on
February 16, 2022)

Letter Agreement between Keith Marchiando and Zive Bioscience, Inc., dated Janvary 1. 2021
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1001 to the Registrant’s Carrent Report on Form 8-K filed on January
7.2021)

Form of Paulson Convertible Note (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed on May 26, 2021)

Form of Shapiro Convertible Note (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,46 to the Registrant's
Registration Statement on Form 5-1/A filed on May 26, 2021)

Zivo Bioscience, Inc. Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 10 the Registrant’s Form 10-0) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 15,
2021)

Stock Option Grant Notice and Agreement 1o Zivo Bioscience, Ine. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 13, 2021)

Subsidiaries of the Regi

Consent of BDO USA, LLP

Centification of the Principal Exccutive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14{a) or Rulc 15d-14(a) of the
Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-144a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
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32.1*  Certification of the Principal Executive Oflicer pursuant to ULS.C. Section 1330 as adopted pursuani 1o
Section %06 of the Sarbancs-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2* Centification of 1he Principal Financial Officer pursuant o US.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant o
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

IOLINS*  Inline XBRL Instance Document

101.5CH*  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
10LCAL*  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101 LAB*  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101 PRE*  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
1001.DEF*  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Defintion Linkbase Document

104*  Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and conained in Exhibit 101)
*  Filed herewith,
**  Fumnished herewith,
+  Indicales a management contract or compensatory plan.
¥ Certain schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Tiem 601{a)(5) of Regulation S-K., A copy of any
omifted schedule andior exhibit will be fumished 1o the SEC upon request.

lItem 16, Form 10-K Summary.

None,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant 1 the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this repornt to be signed on it behalf by the undersigned, thercunto duly authorized.

ZIVO BIOSCIENCE, INC.

Date: March 14, 2023

By:

s/ Ketth R Marchiande
Keith R, Marchiando
Chief Financial Officer. and Secretary

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacitics and on the dates indicated.

By:

By:

By:

B

e

B

-

40

s/ Jolm B. Payre

John B. Payne,

Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
March 14, 2023

s/ Keith R. Marchiande

Keith R. Marchiando

Chicf Finuncial Officer, and Secretary
March 14, 2023

s/ Chriztopler D. Magglore
Christopher 3. Maggiore,
Director

March 14, 2023

: &/ Nela E. Mazverson

Nola E. Masterson,
[irector
March 14, 2023

5l Alizan A Cornell

Alison A. Comell,
Director
March 14, 2023




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PURBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Sharcholders and Board of Dircetors
Zivo Bioscience, Inc,
Bloomficld Hills, Michigan

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance shects of Zivo Bioscience, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders”
equity {deficit), and cash flows for cach of the years then ended, and the related notes {collectively referred 1o as the
“consolidated financial statements”). In our opimon, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its
cash Mows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of

America.
Going Concern Uncertainty

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
poing concem. As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has sulfered recurring
losses and negative cash Nows from operations that raise substantial doubt about its ability 1o continue as a geing
concem, The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the cutcome of this
unceriaindy,

Basis for Opinion

These lidated fi 1al sta 15 are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting
firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Limited States) ("PCAOB”) and are required to be
independent with respect 1o the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Sccuritics and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance sbout whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due o error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an
audit of its inernal control over financial reporting. As pan of our audits we are required 1o obtain an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion,

Our aedits mcluded performing procedures 1o assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due 1o ermor or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those nsks, Such procedures
included examining. on a test basis. evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included cvaluating the accounting principles used and significant estrmates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our apinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The crtical audit matter communicated below 1 a matter ansing from the current period sudit of the consolidated
financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit commitiee and that: (1) relates
to accounts of disclosures that are material to the lidated financial and (2) involved our especially
chatlmgmg. subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of the eritical audit matter docs not alter in any way
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical
audit matter below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit marter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it
relates,

Stock-Based Compensation

As discussed in Notes 2, 4 and 10 to the Company ‘s consolidated financial statements, the Company accounts for stock-
based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, which requires compensation to be measured based on the grant-date
fair value of the equity-based award and recognized as an expense over the requisite service period. The Company
determines the fair valie of common stock option awands using the Black Scholes eption pricing model. As a result of
these awards, the Company recorded expenses of $2.7 million during the vear ended December 31, 2022,

We identified the Company s estimated grant date fair value of common stock oplion awards as a critical audit manter.
The Company identificd certain errors, constituting a material weakness, in the determination of the estimated grant date
fair value of common stock option awards, Auditing the Company’s revised estimated grant date fair value of these
awards was especially challenging due to the increased auditor effort required.
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The primary procedures we performed 1o address this critical audit maiter ncluded:

»  Testing the accuracy of the contractual terms wtilized in the revised Black Scholes option pricing model by
inspecting the underlying agreements.

»  Unihzing personnel with specialized knowledge and skills in valustion to assist with evaluating the
methodology and the reasonablencss of key assumptions utilized in the revised Black Scholes option
pricing model.

»  Recalculating the revised estimated grant date fair value of cach stock option award.

/' BDO USA, LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2022,
Troy, Michigan

March 14, 2023




ZIVO BIOSCIENCE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 3,

2022 2021
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash.. L% 1799263 S B9018TS
Prepaid expénscs 102416 58078

Total current assets w 5 190679 § E950953
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET i i

OTHER ASSETS:

Opeﬁnng !em ngjn of use asset | B9.282 27,225
Total mhn-nsscu 221,340 30,225
TOTAL .f\SSl’-‘.‘l‘S § 2123019 §  B9M,178

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT):

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable..., = i 490,670 $ 654,333
Current portion oflms-:nfm upm::mg Iem 99259 15178
Conventible debentures pavable.... . 240,030 240,000
Deferred R&D obligations - partics mng( 525,904 1.106,320
Deferred RED obligations - pnrll:lpullon a;.mmms r:laiud partics. 175,427 369,037
Acerued interest.. 98,286 95,886
Accrued Il.a.b!h.tu:: palymll :.ml du\ccm l':rs 398,176 467,215

Total current liabilities..
LONG TERM LIABILITIES:

2027722 § 2947969

Long-term operating lease, net of current portion 105,919 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... WRURUHURPRIR R e———e. (M ). 1.5 = G T &y K )
COMMITMENTS AND L"(H'\TIN(J !;M II:S

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT):
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 150,000,000 and 150,000,000 shares aunthorized as of
Diecember 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021; 9419660 and 9,419,660 issued and 5

outstanding at December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, respectively 9420 § 9420

Additional paid-in capital 115,784,488 113,092,026
Accumulated deficit.......... (115,804,530) (107,059,237}
Total stockholders® equity {deficit).. {10.622) 8 6,042,209

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY (DEFICIT).. L8 L1209 8 B990,178

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




ZIVO BIOSCIENCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the vear  For the vear
ended ended
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

REVENUE:
Service Revenue - 8
Total Revenues . - 5
COSTS AND EXPENSES:
General and administrative 6,491,704 6,694,619
Rescarch and development 2,240,270 1,950,500
Total Costs and EXPEnses ... rrisimsissimsimsmsrnsias s s 8 K731974 §  H645.119
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS .......coocrernriscmsimsissimssssssssmsmissmsrmissssssmesssness. 9 (813 1,974) 8§ (8,645,119)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Gain of forgivencss of debt and acerwed interest 122,520
Interest expense - related parties.. - { 188,605)
Interest exXpense ......cocvenens (1331%) (44.677)
O T B ot v S o o B et (13319 8§ (110.,762)
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE ,..oooooovccicivniinimies s 9 (0.93) (1.15)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE
BASIC AND DILUTED SHARES OUTSTANDING ... 9419660 7,629,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ZIVO BIOSCIENCE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY (DEFICIT)
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2021 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2022

Additional
Q--- Stnck Paid in Accumulated
A it Capltal Iheficin Tonal

L P T L L — !r 162945 & 508 5 BRSETETE 5 (53003356 & (113M0514)
Enmployee and director equity-hased compensation 2970,027 3 970,027
Fesumansce of comenon stock for cash - related party A A L] AT G S0 0
Issumance of common stock for cash 139 664, (£ 1514 %29 1.514,%69
lssisance of wasrants pursuant 1o the purberpu.m

ageesments., 55607 5,697
Common stock um\] umm mmm EXETCiR 54,360 o) 154} =
Publsc offering wsmance of stock and warrants. * 291 0,000 1910 14545 500 14,548 300
Fracizmal Shares: from Splil 1% -
Utneberwitifng and ether expemses for poblic oflaring (1.697.52%) {1,687 528)
Wastanits sald as pant of the pebise olfermg.. 4 4.240 4240
Common steck issued oa rh‘mdwnm«*mm 198,503 is9 (L 1091, 767
Commos stack Mwmmrdondl'll‘-(mm*tc

Diehe snd accraed imtencst 42,323 2 TE37615 7.538,557
Ssock isswed for services .. s T7.500 L 11767 1378
\nhslhrmtmhrnm:lldcd Docember 30, 2021 .. (R 755 RE1) LB TS5.851)
Balarwe, Decemiber 31, 2020 e CEIE TR D420 5 15002026 S(107089.23T) £ 6042200

Additionsl
Cammon Stock Paid in Accumulated
Shares Amosinl Capital Thelhedt Total

Balance. Decermbes 3, 2020 ooveerresn s eremssnrens 419660 5 A0 5 113092026 S(I07059.23T) 5 6042200
Employes and director equity-based compensation ...... % 2592 462 2602462
N bosal fiof 1he twelve months coded December 31, 2022 {8.745.203) 18, 745,293)
Balasece, Devetmber 31 2022 s s GAlG6e0 £ AN % 115.7R44RE 8 (1|5 A0RSN0) § {10,622}

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




ZIVO BIOSCIENCE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Faor the Year
Ended Ended
December 31, December 3,
2022 2021
Cash Nows from aperating activities:
Net Loss... o s 3 (8,745,293) §  (8,755.881)
M}uslm:ms lu m:on:ul:.- ml Ims ln IK'I cn:h uscd m Opnmrngacllw'llcs
Stock issted for services rendered . » 32,775
Gain on forgiveness of debt and aocm':d II1-1|‘.'|'¢'$l - (122,520}
Employee and director equity-based compensation expense 2,692,462 2,970,027
Non-cash lease cxpense... 79,637 22,138
Amortization of deferred R&D . nhllgamncs pamcnpatmn agreements , (774,025) (555,745)
f‘hanq;es in assets and liabilitics:
[44.338) (2£,125)
{29,058) -
{163,663) (905,295)
Advanced pavments for R&ED obliganons - panicipation agreements 85,304
Lease liabilities .. {51,695) (29.171)
Accrued liabilites.. (636, 639) 483.160
Met cash {used) in operating activitics. {7,002,612) §  (6,803,333)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Wet cash (uscd) i iNVESHNE BOUVITIES _....mevcuerrerearesecen e ressrassacsssmsmssas s pemsasssssenrensss 9 - 8 -
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds of loans pavable, other .. 5 628,600 § 1940, 500
Payment of loans payable, other . - (628,600 (190,500}
Proceeds from =ale of common stock warrants - participation sgreements - 55,697
Proceeds from public sale of common stock .. - 15,644,507
Expenses related 10 public offering..... - {1,697.825)
Proceeds from =ale of common stock, n:l.all:d pany .. ; - 50,000
Proceeds from sales of common stock . - 1,514,970
Net cash provided by financing activities oy - 8§ 15567346
Increase (decrease) in cash il (7.102,612) S B.764.013
Cash at begmning of period ., R.901.875 137,862
Cash at end of period ............ 1.799.263 § BO0LETS
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest 5 10920 § 3.084
MO MRS e e e B st - 5 -

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of these consolidated financial statements.




Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022:
During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company had no non-cash financing transactions.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company had non-cash investing activities in the amount of 5241694
related to ROU assets obtained in exchange for ROU habilities,

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021:

During the vear ended December 31, 2021, a related party applied the proceeds of a Loan Payable in the principal
amount of $9,000, against an investment in a Participation Agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, warrants @0 purchase 139,100 shares of the Company’s commeon siock were
exercised on a “cashless™ basis resulting in the issuance of 54,361 shares of commeon stock.

On June 2, 2021, pursuant 1o the terms of several Debt Extension and Conversion Agreements with holders of our 11%
convertible debt, a total of 87,538,557 comprised of outstanding principal of 54,940,342 and interest of 82,598,215 of our
convertible notes were awtomatically convened into 942,322 shares of common stock at $8.00 per share. See “Note 7 -
Convertible Debr for addinional information.

On September 9, 2021, the Company received a Nonfication of Paycheck Protection Program Forgiveness Pavment letter
from the SBA confirming that the full amount of the principal. $121.700, and accrued imerest, $1,653, were forgiven by
the SBA, The Company recognized the forgiveness of debt principal of $121,700 and the 2020 accrecd interest of S820
as an Other Ivcome of $122,520.

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial siatements.
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ZIVO BIOSCIENCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The business model of Zive Bioscience, Inc. and its subsidiaries (Health Enhancement Corporation, HEPI
Pharmaccuticals, Inc., Zivo Bioscience, LLC, Wellmetrix, LLC, WellMetris, LLC, Zive Biologic, Inc., ZIVOLife, LLC,
and Zivo Zoologie, Inc. (collectively the “Company™)) is to derive future income from licensing and selling natural
bivactive ingredients derived from their proprictary algae cultures to ammal, human and dictary supplement and medical
food manulacturers.

NOTE 2 - REVISION OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Equity-Based Compensation

Errors were identificd in the historical financial statements related to the valustion and expense of cquity-based
compensation for ipement and the bers of the Company’s beard of directors. The Company accounts for stock-
based compensation in accordance with ASC TI8. Under the provisions of ASC 718, stock-based compensalion cost is
cstimated ar the grant date based on the award”s fair value and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period,
Al the date of grant, the Company determines the fair value of the siock option award using the Black Scholes option
pricing model.

The Company made crrors in the application of the Black Scholes option valuation model by applying an inappropnate
nicthm]nlug}- in determining the expeeted term of granted options. Based on the limited hl;lnry tclnti.ng o exercises of
optiens, the Company determined that the best method for determining the expected life of an option grant is the
simplificd method, After mcnlmlutmg the valuations and revicwing the penodic reported expense for all the options
issued as cqu:ly—hu_u:d compensation, the Company concluded that, in aggregate, 1t had overstated the equity-based
compensation. In accordance with SEC Staft Accounting Bulletin No. 99, Materiality, and SEC Staff Accounting
Bulletin Mo, 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year
Financial Statements; the Company evaluated the change and has determined that the related inmpact was not material to
any previously presented financial statements. As such the Company corrected the error in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2021,

Thee impact of the revision on the Company's previously released financial statements that are referenced in this form 10-
K are reflected in the following tables,

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as of December 31, 2021

As Previously
Reporied Adjustment _As Revised
- & 114259830 8 (1.167.804) § 113,092,026
(108227041} LIGT.R04  (107,059.237)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Additional paid-in capital .
Accumulated deficit..........

As Previously
Reporied Adjustment _As Revised
- 8 6932921 §  (238302) §  6.694619
2119684 (169,154) 1,950,500
9,052,605 (407, 456) 5,645,119
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS ... (3,052,605) 407 486 (8.645,119)
NET LOSS (9,163,366} 407 485 (8.775.851)
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE.........occninnicnimnes § (1.20) § 005 § {1.15)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) For the Year
Ended December 31, 2021

Cieneral and Administrative.,
Research and Developmen
Total costs and expenses...

As Previously
Reported Adjustment _As Revised
- 5 §7.747898 S (760,319) § E6.987.579
(99,063,675) 760,319 (98,303,356}

Balunce, December 30, 2020 - Additional Paid in Capital
Balance, December 30, 2020 - Accumulated Deficit,.. s
Employee and director equity-based compensation - :’kddmoml Palsl

in Capital 3371512 (407.485) 2,970,027
Employee and director equity-based compensation - Total 3377512 {407 485) 2970027
Net loss for the vear ended December 31, 2021 - Accumulated

Deficit... s {9.163,366) 407,485 (B, 775,881)
Net loss for the 1 wa: ended December !L 2021 - Total (9,163,366) 407,485 (8.775.881)
Balance, December 31, 2021 - Additional Paid in Capital 114,259 830 (1,167, 804) 113082026

Balance, December 31, 2021 - Accumulated Deficit S(I08.227.041) S 1L167.804  $(107,050,237)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

As Previously
Reported Adjustment _As Revised
- 5 (9,063366) § 407485 5 (RITSER1)
13msn (407 485) 2,970,027

Employee and director equity compensation ..

NOTE 3 - GOING CONCERN

The Company has incurred net losses since inception, experienced negative cash flows from operations for the year
ended December 31, 2022 and has an accumulated deficit of $115.8 million. The Company has historically financed its
opcrations primarily through the ssuance of common stock. warrants, and debl.

The Company expecis to continue to incur operating losses and net cash ontflows until such time as it generates a level of
revenue o support 1ts cost structure. There can be no assurance that the Company will achicve profitable operations, and,
if achieved, whether it will be sustained on a continued basis.

The Company intends to fund ongeing activitics by utilizing its current cash on hand and by raising additional capital
through equity or debt financings. There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in raising that
additional capital or that such capital, if available, will be on terms that are acceptable to the Company. If the Company 15
unable o raise sufficient additional capitul, the Company may be compelled to reduce the scope of ils operations and
planned capital expenditures,

These factors raisc substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year afier the
date the financial statements are issued. The Company's © lidated financial st have been prepared on the
basis of continuity of operations, realization of assels and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business; no
adjustments have been made relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts and classification
of liabilitics that might be necessary should the Company not continug as a going concem,

NOTE 4 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consalidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Zivo Bioscience, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidianies,
Health Enhancement Corporation, HEPI Pharmaceuticals, Ine.. Wellmetrix, LLC, Wellmeinis, LLC, Zivo Bioscience,
LLC. Zivo Biologic, Inc., ZIVOLife, LLC, and Zive Zoologic., Inc. All significant infcreompany transaciions and
accounts have boen climinated in consolidation.

Accounting Estimates

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepled accounting
principles in the United States of America, which require management to make csfimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disch of tngent asscts and liabilitics, at the date of the financial
statements and reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting peniod. Due to the inherent uncertainty
invelved in making estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates. Management uses its best judgment in
valuing these estimates and may, as warranted, solicit external professional advice and other assumptions believed o be
reasonable.

Cash

For the purpose of the statements of cash Mows, cash equivalents melude nme deposits, cemificates of deposit and all
highly liquid debt instruments with original maturitics of three months or less. The Company maintains cash and cash
equivalents balances at financial institutions and are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corposation (“FDIC™) up
1o §250,000. Al times, balances in certain bank accounts may exceed the FDIC insured limits. At December 31, 2022 and
2021, the Company did not have any cash equivalents.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of fumiture and office equipment and are carried at cost less allowances for depreciation
and amonization. Depreciation and amortization are determined by using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Repair and maintenance costs that do not improve service potential or extend the
economic life of an existing fixed assel are expensed as incurred.
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Leases

ASC 842, Leases, requires the recognition of a right-of-use (“ROU™) and a comresponding lease liability on the balance
sheet. ROU assets represent the right 1o use an underlving asset over the lease term and lease liabilivies represem the
obligation to make lease payments resulting from the lease agreement. ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized on
commencement of the lease agreement.

ROU assets are included within operating lease right-of-use assets, and the comresponding operating lease Labilities are
recorded as current portion of long-term operating lease, and within long-term liabilitics as long-term operating lease, not
of current portion on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,

Lease assets and lease liabilities are recognized based on the present value of lease pavments over the lease term at
commencement date. Generally, we do not consider any additional renewal periods to be reasonably certam of being
exercised, as comparable locations could generally be wdentified within the same irade arcas for comparable lease rates.
Because the Company's leases do not provide an implicit rate of return, the Company used its incremental borrowing rate
in determining the present value of lease payments. We have clected the practical expedicnt not to scparate lease and
nonlease components for all of our building leases.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized in accordance with ASC 606, which utilizes five sicps to determine whether revenue can be
recognized and to what extent; (i) identify the contract with a customer; (il klentify the performance obligation(s); (iii)
determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the transaction price 1o the performance obligations in the contract: and (v)
determine the recognition period. The Company only applies the five-step madel to contracts when it is probable that the
Company will collect the consideration it is entitled 1o in exchange for the goods or services it transfers o the customer.
Al contract inceplion, once Lhe contract is determined 1o be within the scope of ASC 606, Revere from Conracts with
Crstoimers, the Company assesses the goods or services promised within cach contract and determines those that are
performance obligations and assesses whether cach promised good or service is distinct. The Company then recognizes
a3 revenue the amount of the transaction poice that is allocated to the respective performance obligation when (or as) the
performance obligation is satisficd.

Significant judgments exercised by management include the identification of performance obligations, and whether such
promised goods or services are considered distinct. The Company evaluates promised goods or services on a contract-by-
contract basis to determine whether cach promise represents a good or service that 15 distinet or has the same pattern of
transfer as other promises. A promised good or serviee is considered distinet if the customer can benefit from the good or
service independently of other goods/services cither in the contract or that can be obtained elsewhere, without regard to
contract exclusivity, and the entity’s promise to transfer the good or service to the customer is scparately identifiable
from other promises in the comact, 1 the good or service 15 nol considercd distinet. the Company combines such
promiscs and accounts for them as a single combined performance obligation.

Rescarch and Development

Rescarch and development ("R&D™) costs are expensed as incurred. The Company’'s R&D costs, including internal
expenses, consist of clinical sudy expenses as it relates 1o the biotech business and the development and growing of
algae as it relates 1o the aglech business. External clinical smudies expenses were approximately $1.4 million and $1.6
million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Intermal expenses, composed of staff salaries
compose approximately $1.5 million and $500,000 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These
costs were offset by the amortization of the R&D obligation of $774,025 and $555.745 for the years ending December
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively; 193,610 of the year ended December 31, 2022 and S150.805 for the year ended
December 31, 2021 of the amoriization amount was aiinbutable 10 related panies (see “Nofe ¥ . Deferred R&D
Obligations - Participation Agreenents™).

Income Taxes

The Company follows the authoritative guidance for accounting for income taxes. Dieferred income taxes arce determined
using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax asseis and liabilities are recognized for the future fax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing asscts and Labilitics and their
respective tax bascs and operating loss and wx credit carry-forwards. Deferred tux assets and liabilitics are measured
using enacted tax rales expected to apply to taxable income in the vears in which those temporary differences arc
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax ratles is recognized
in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
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The tax cffects of temporary differences that gave rise to the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at December
31, 2022 and 2021 were primanly atirtbutable 10 net operating loss carry forwards, Since the Company has a history off
losses, and it is more likely than not that seme portion or all of the deferred 1ax assets will not be realized, a full valuation
allowance has been established. In addition, wtilization of net operating loss carry-forwards is subject w0 a substantial
annual limitation due o the “change in ownership™ provisions ol the Intemal Revenue Code. The annual limitation may
result in the expiration of nel operating loss carry-forwands before utiliztion.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation i accordance with FASB ASC 718, Compenzarion - Stock
Conpenzation. Under the provisions of FASE ASC 718, stock-based compensation cost is estimated at the grant date
based on the award's fair value and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period. The Company, from lime
to time, issues comimon stock or grants common stock options to its employees, consultants and board members. At the
date of grant, the Company determines the fair value of the stock option award and recognizes compensation expense
over the requisite service period. Issuances of common stock are valued ai the closing market price on the date of
issuance and the fair value of any stock option or warrant awards 15 caleulated using the Black Scholes option pricing
model and emplaying the simplificd term method as the Company docs not have a historical basis o determing the term,
The Company records forfeiture of oplions when they occur,

During 2022 and 2021, options were granted 1o employees, directors and consultants of the Company. As a result of
these grants, the Company recorded expenses of $2.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2022, approximately
S500.000 of this expense was for R&D and 52.2 million was attributed to G&A. During the year ending December 31,
2021 the Company recorded expenses of 55.0 million, approximately S300,000 of this expense was for R&D and $§2.7
million was attnibuted 1o G&A.

The fair value of options and warrants were estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing mode]
based on the following weighted average assumplions:

Year Ended December 21,
2022 2021
116.42% 101 30.18% 123.40% to 145.97%
0 0%
5 to 5.75 years 3.25 to 5.87 years
188 to 3.70% 0.24% 10 1.34%

The Black-Scholes option-pricing mode] wais developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options that have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option-pricing models require the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the expected stock price volanhty. In considening the expected term of the options, the Company
employs the simplified method. The Company uses this method as it does not have a history of option excreises to
cstablish a robust estimated term based on expenence. The simphified term 15 used for the determination of expected
volailiey s well as the identification of the nisk free rate.

Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic loss per share i1s computed by dividing the Company’s net loss by the weighted average number of shares of
commaon steck outstanding during the period presented. Diluted loss per share is based on the treasury stock method and
meludes the effeet from potential issuance of common stock such as shares issuable pursuant to the exercise of ophions
and warrants and conversions of debentures. Potentially dilutive securities as of Docember 31, 2022, consisted of 53,546
shares of common stock from convertible debentures and related sccrued imerest and 6,267,602 shares of comman
stock underlying outstanding options and warrants. Potentially dilutive securitics as of December 31, 2021, consisted of
53,076 shares of commen stock from convertible debentures and related accrued interest and 7,250,206 shares of
common stock underlying outstanding options and warrants. For 2022 and 2021, diluted and basic weighted average
shares were the same, as potentially dilutive shares are anti-dilutive.

Sepment Reporting

The Company's Chiel Executive Officer, who is considered 1o be the chief operating decision maker (CODM), reviews
financial information presented on a consolidated basis, accompanied by information about operating segments for
purposes of making operating decisions and assessing financial performance, Operating segments are defined as
components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the
CODM in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company operates solely in the United
Statcs.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We account for fair value measurements of asscis and liabilitics that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
financial statements on a recurming of nonrecuming basis adhering to the Financial Accounting Standards Beard
{(“FASB") fair value hierarchy that prionitizes the mpauts 1o valuation techniques used 10 measure faur valwe. The hierarchy
gives the highest prionity o unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level |
measurements) and the lowest priorily (o measurements involving significani unobservable inputs (Level 3
measuremenis), The three levels of the far value hierarchy are as follows:

s Level | Inputs: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics sccessible 1o
the Company at the measurement date,

e Level 2 Inpuis: Other than quoled prices included in Level | inputs that are observable for the assel or
liability, either directly or indirecily, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

=  Level 3 Inputs: Unobservable inputs for the assct or Hability used to measure fair value to the extent that
observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is linle, if any, market
activity for the ueset or liability ot measurement date,

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, fair values of cash, prepaid, other assets. accounts payable and sccrued expenses
approximated their carrving values because of the short-term nature of these assets or labilities. As of December 31,
2022 and 2021 the fair value of the convertible notes approximated their carrying value.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially cubject the Company to significant concentrations of credit rigk consist principally
of cash and cash equivalents. The Company hoas histerically maintained cash balances at financial institutions which
exceed the current FDIC limat of $250,000 at times during the year.

The Company has not experienced losses on these accounts and management believes the Company 15 not exposed o
significant risks on such account.

Recently Adepted Accounting Standards

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASL! 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial [nstruments (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which requires companics o measure credit losses utilizing a
methodology that reflects expected credit losses and requires a consideration of a brosder range of reasonable and
supportable information to mform credit loss estimates, The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15, 2022, with carly adoption permitted. The Company adopted this ASU beginning January 1, 2023, The
Company has determined there is no impact of this standard on itz financial statements.

In May 2021, the FASB wssued ASU No. 2021404, Eamings Per Share (Topic 260), Debt-Modifications and
Extinguishments (Subtopic 470-50), Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic T18), and Derivatives and Hedging-
Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40): Issuer’s Accounting for Certain Modifications or Exchanges of
Freestanding Equity-Classified Written Call Options. This update provides guidance for o modification or an exchange of
a freestanding equity-classified written call option that is not within the scope of another Topic. This update is effective
for fiscal vears beginning after December 15, 2021, The Company has determined there is no impact of this standard on
its financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopied

In August 2020, the FASE issucd ASU No. 202006 (*ASL 2020-067), Debt - Debt with Conversion and Other Options
(Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging - Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic §15-40) (“*ASU 2020-067),
ASU 202006 climinates the beneficial conversion and cash conversion accounting models for convertible instruments. It
also amends the aceounting for cerlain contracts in an enlity's own equity that are currently accounted for as derivatives
because of specific settlement provisions. In addition, ASU 2020-06 modifies how particular convertible instruments and
certain contracts that may be sefiled in cash or shares impact the diluted EPS computation. The amendments in this
update are cffective for public business entitics for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021 {or December 15,
2023 for companies who meet the SEC definition of Smaller Reporting Companies), and interim periods within those
fiscal years, The amendment is to be adopted through cither a fully retrospective or modificd retrospective method of
transition. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently cvaluating the impact of this standard on its financial
statements and related disclosures.
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NOTE § - LEASES

On December 17, 2020, the Company entered into a 25 1% month lease agreement for a facility that comtains office,
warehouse, lab and R&IDD space in Fi. Myer, Florida. The lease agreement commenced on December 17, 2020 and ends
on January 31, 2023, The lease agreement provided for a total rent of $54,993 over the penod. Occupancy of the property
commenced on December 17, 2020, and there was a 6-week rent holiday and a commencement date of February |, 2021,
Lease expense for operating lease paymenis is recognized on a siraighi-line basis over the lease term. Rent is $3,291 per
month from January 15, 2021 to January 31, 2022 and 51,154 from February 1, 2022 o Jansary 31, 2023, On June 5,
2022, the Company excrcised an option to extend the fease through December 31, 2024, The lease extension rent is
$2,261 per month for calendar year 2023, and $2,300 per month for calendar year 2024, and totals an additional rent
obligation of $54.743 of rent over the extension period.

On January 14, 2022, the Company entered into a 34-month sublease agreement for a 4,843 square-foot office in
Bloemficld Hills, Michigan, The Company moved iis headquariers to thas location, The agreemeni commenced on
January 29, 2022 and ends on November 30, 2024, The agreement provided for o total rent of 5232464, Occupancy of
the property commenced on January 29, 2022, there was a three-month rent holiday with a rent commencement date
of April 29, 2022, Lease expense for operating lease payments is recognized on a siraight-line basis over the lease
term. Rent is 87265 per month from commencement to November 30, 2022, §7466 from November 30, 2022 to
November 30, 2023, and 37.66% from November 30, 2023 1o the lease end date.

The balances for our operating lease where we are the lessee are presented as follows within our consolidated balance
sheet:

Operating leases:

December 31, December 31,
Assets: 2022 2021
Operating lease fght-0f-5e A8500.. ... v s e 9 189,282 § 11,225
Liahilities:

Current portion of long-term operating lease, ..
Long-term operating lease, net of current pariion .

a1 99259 8§ 15,178
105,918 =
5 205177 § 15,178

The components of lease expense are as follows within our consolidated statement of operations:

For the Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
IS D X PICIRE -5 v ivnviivtsvim i i R i i s T B bbb o b i i 102,249 % 25879
o

Chber information related to leases where we are the lessee is as follows:

For the Year ended
December 3, December
2022 31, 2021

Weighted-average remaiming lease term:

Operating leases.............. 1.94 Years 1.08 Years
Dhscount rate:
e B e e S i 11.00% 11007

Supplemental cash llow information related to leases where we are the lessee is as follows:

For the Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities: . T4.307 § 32913
Non=cash investment in RO 88561 ..ianaanisimiss 241,694 -
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As of December 31, 2022, the maturitics of our operating bease liability are as follows:

Operating
Year Ended: Lease
Diecember 31, 2023 ., . 8 116,933
December 31, 2024 111,956
Total minimum lease payments s

Less: Interest. ...

Present value of!casc.;ﬁl.;gallmli s 205,178
Less: Curvent portion ....... . 99,259
Long-term portion of lease obligations.., =t 105,919

NOTE 6 - LOAN PAYABLE, RELATED PARTIES
HEP Investments, LLC

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company and HEP Investments, LLC ("HEP”, or "HEP Investments™)
agreed to exchange the $9.000 in related party debi into an equal investment of 59,000 in the Pariicipation Agreements
(scc “Note 9 . Deferred RE&ED Obligations - Pariicipation Agr ™). This agr climinated any remaining third-
party debt with HEP Investments. As of December 31, 2021, there were no Leans Payable to related partics.

NOTE 7 - CONVERTIBLE DEBT
HEF Invesiments, LLC - Related Pariy

On December 2, 2001, the Company and HEP Investments entered into the following documents, cffective as of
December 1, 2011, as amended through May 16, 2018: (i} a Loan Agreement under which the HEP Investments agreed
to advance up to S20,000,000 to the Company, subject to certain conditions, (ii) an 11% Conventible Securcd Promissory
WNate in the principal amount of $20.000.000 (“Convertible Note™) {of which a total of S18,470,640 was funded, with a
total of $14, 380 298 converted inte 1,796 287 shares of common stock, leaving a balance advanced of 54,090,342 as of
December 31, 2020), (ii1) a Security Agreement, under which the Company granied HEP Investments a security inferest
in all of its assets, (iv) wamants issued to HEP Investments to purchase 20,833 shares of common stock al an exercise
price of $9.60 per share (including a cashless exercise provision) which expired September 30, 2006, (v) a Registration
Rights Agreement with respect to all the shares of common stock issuable to HEP Investments in connection with the
Loan Agreement, in cach case subject to completion of funding of the full $20,000,000 called for by the Loan
Agreement, and (vi) an Intellectual Property security agreement under which the Company and ils subsidianes granied
HEP Investmenis a security interest in all their respective intellectual properties, including patents, in order 1o secure
their respective obligations to HEP Investments under the Convertible Note and related documents. The Convertible Note
was oniginally converiible into the Company’s common stock al 38,00 per share. In addition, the Company's subsidiaries
guaranteed the Company s obligations under the Convertible Note, On March 31, 2021, HEP Investments entered into a
“Debt Extension and Conversion Agreement” with the Company providing that the Conventible MNotes, including
principal and accrwed interest, would automatically convent into shares of common stock upon consummation of an
underwritten public offerning of the Company's commen stock.

On June 2, 2021, in accordance with the Debi Extension and Conversion Agreement, all of the outstanding debi and
accrued interest for the Convertible Notes was awtomatically converted into common stock of the Company, The
principal amount of 54,090,342 and the scorued interest o June 2, 2021, of 52,161,845 rotaled 56,252,187, this total
amount was converted into 781,524 shares of common stock (calculaed at $8.00 per share). As of December 31, 2022,
the Company had no further remaining financial obligations 1o the HEP Investments under the terms of the Loan
Agreement, the Convertible Note or the Registration Rights Agreement. Additionally, as of the conversion of the total
oulstanding principal and accrued iterest balance, HEP Investments no longer retains a securily interest in the
Company’s intelleciual property or other assels.

In Jammry 2019, and m connection with the Converible Note, HEP Investments entered 1o a life imsurance policy for
Andrew Dahl, our former Chicl Executive Officer. On February 23, 2021, the Company and HEP Investments entered
inte & Letter Agreement in which the Company agreed to pay certain prenmiums of $2.565 per month under the life
insurance policy while payments under the Convertible Note remained outstanding. Upon conversion of the Convertible
Notes on June 2, 2021, the Company immediately stopped paying the premiums under the life msurance policy.
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Paulson Investment Company, LLC - Related Debit

The Company previously entered into a Placement Agent Agreement with Paulson Investment Company, LLC
("Paulson™). The Placement Agent Agreement provided that Pavison could provide up o $2 million in financings to
“accredited investors™. The Company received gross proceeds of 51,250,000 in connection with leans received from the
“New Lenders”. Each loan included (i) a Loan Agreement, {ii) a Convertible Secured Promissory Note (“New Lenders
Notes”) in the principal amount of the loan, (1) a Secunty Agreement under which the Company granted the New
Lenders a security intercst in all of its assets and (iv) an Intercreditor Agreement with HEP Investments wherehby HEP
Investments and the New Lenders agree to participate in all collateral on a pan passu basis, The New Lender Notes had a
two-year term and matured September 2018 ($600,000) and October 2018 (5650,000). Paulson received a 10% cash
finance foe for monies invested in the Company in the form of convertible debt, along with 5-vear warrants, excrcisable
at S8.00 per share, all the warrants have expired as of December 31, 2021, The Now Lenders Notes were convertible into
the Company’s common stock at $%.00 per share.

In May 2021, cach of the remaining New Lenders entered into a Debt Extension and Conversion Agrecment with the
Company. These agreements provided thai the New Lender Notes, including principal and accrued interest, would
automatically convert into shares of common stock upon consummation of an underwritten public offering of the
Company’s common stock.

On Junc 2, 2021, in accordance with the Debt Extension and Conversion Agreement between the remaining New
Lenders and the Company, all of the remuining outstanding debt and accrued imterest for the New Lenders Notes were
automatically converted to commeon stock. The remaining principal amount of §350,000 and the acerued interest to June
2, 2021, of $436,369 totaled 51,286,369; this total amount was converted info 160,798 shares of common stock at
$8.00 per share. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had no further ining financial obligations to the New
Lenders under the terms of the New Lenders Notes. All security interests of the New Lenders in the Company’s assets
have been terminated.

Other Debt

The Company’s 1% convertible debentures allow for rolling 30-day extensions until notice 13 given by the lender to the
Company to the contrary. As of December 31, 2022, that agreement is still in place,

NOTE 8 - NOTE PAYABLE
Paveheck Protection Program Loan

On May 7, 2020, the Company received 5121, 700 in loan funding from the Paycheck Protection Program (the “PPP”)
established pursuant 1o the recently enacted Coronavires Aid, Relicef, and Economic Sceurity Act of 2020 (the “CARES
Act”) and administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (“SBA”). The unsecured loan (the “PPP Loan™) is
cvidenced by a promissory note of the Company, dated Apnl 29, 2020 (the “Note™) in the principal amount of
121,700 with Comerica Bank (the “Bank™), the lender.

Under the terms of the Note and the PPP Loan, inferest aconies on the outstanding principal at the rate of 1.0% per
annum. The term of the Note was two years, though it could have been pavable sooner in connection with an ¢vent of
defauht under the Note.

The CARES Act and the PPP provide a mechanism for forgiveness of up o the full amount bomrowed. Under the PPP,
the Company was eligible to apply for forgivencss for all or a part of the PPP Loan. The amount of loan proceeds eligible
for forgivencss, as amended, was based on a formuls that takes into account a number of factors, including: (1) the
amount of loan proceeds that are used by the Company during the covered period after the loan origination date for
certain specified purposes inchading payroll costs. interest on certain mortgage obligations, rent payments on cenain
leases, and certain qualified utility payments, provided that at least 60% of the loan amount is used for chigible payroll
costs; (1) the Company maintaining or rehinng employees, and maintaining salaries al certain levels; and (1) other
factors established by the SBA. Subject to the other requirements and limitations on loan forgiveness, only that pontion of
the loan procecds spent on payroll and other eligible costs during the covered period will qualify for forgiveness.

In August 2021, the Company applicd to the SBA for forgiveness of the outstanding loan principal and acenied intercst
under the CARES Act. On September 9, 2021, the Company received a Motification of Paycheck Protection Program
Forgiveness Payment letter from the SBA confimung that the full amount of the principal, $121,700, and sccrued
interest, 51,653, were forgiven by the SBA. The Company recognized the forgiveness of debt principal of $121.700 and
the 2020 accrued interest of $520 as an Other Income of $122.520, the remaining interest due for the PPP Loan in 2021
through the forgivencss date of 5533 was booked o offset the 2021 interest expense. The Company’s PPP loan and
application for forgiveness of loan amounts remain subject o review and audit by SBA for compliance with program
requirements.

Short Term Loan

On February 21, 2022, the Company entered into a shor-term, unsecured loan agreement to finance a portion of the
Company's dircctors” and officers’ insurance premiums. The note in the amount of 3628 600 carmcd a 4.15% annual
percentage rate and was paid down i nine equal payments of $71,058 beginning in March 2022, The loan was fully paid
off, and there was no remaining principal balance as of December 31, 20212,
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NOTE 9 - DEFERRED R&ED OBLIGATIONS - PARTICIPATION AGREEMENTS

The Company cntered into twenty-one (21) License Co-Development Participation Agreements (the “Participation
Agreements”) with certain investors (Participants”) for aggregate proceeds of $2,985.000, The Participation Agreements
provide for the izsuance of warrants to such Participants and allows the Participants to participate in the fees (the “Fees™)
from licensing or selling bisactive ingredients or molecules derived from ZIVO's algae cultures, Specifically, ZIVO has
agreed o provide to the Participants a 44.78% “Revenue Share™ of all license fees generated by ZIVO from any licensee
(See the Table below),

According o the terms of the Agreements, and pursuant to ASC 730-20-25 the Company has bifurcated the procesds of
$2.985.000 as follows: 1) the 106,315 warrants sold were attributed a value of $953 897 based on the Black Scholes
pricing mode] using the following assumptions: volatilitics ranging from 129.13% 1o 154,26%; annual rate of dividends
0%%; discount rates ranging from 0.26% fo 0.37%, and recorded as Additional Paid In Capital; 2) the remaining
$2.031.103 was recorded as Deferred R&D Obligation - Participation Agreements. Since the Company believes there 15
an obligation to perform pursuant to ASC 730-20-25, the Deferred R&D Obligation will be amortized ratably based on
cxpenses incurred as the Company develops the technology for bioactive ingredients or molecules (including s TLR4
Inhibitor melecule) denved from the Company's algoe culires. In the vear ending December 31, 2022, the Company
recognized $774,025 as a contra R&ED expense related to personnel and third-party expenses 10 develop the subject
techmology. 193,610 of this total conira R&ED expense was attributed 1o deferred R&ED obligations funded by a related
party. As of December 31, 2022, the remaining R&D obligation was $701.331. of which $175.427 was attnbuted 10 a
related party. In the prior year ending December 31, 2021, the Company recognized $555,745 as a contra R&D expense
related o personnel and third-party cxpenses to develop the subject technology. $150,805 of this intal contra R&D
expense was attributed 1o deferred R&D obligations funded by a related party. As of December 31, 2021, the remaining
R&D obligation was §1,475,357, of which 369,037 was anributed to a related party.

The Participation Agreemcents allow the Company the option to buy back the right, title and interest in the Revenue Share
for an amount equal 10 the amount funded plus a forty percent (40%) premium, if the option is exercised less than |8
months following exceution, and for cither forty (40%) er fifty percent (50%) if the option is exercised more than 18
months following execution. Pursuant to the terms of twelve of the Participation Agreements, the Company may not
exercise its option until it has paid the Panicipants a revenus share equal to a minimum of thiny percent (30%4) of the
amount such Participant’s total payment amount. Pursuant to the terms of one of the Participation Agreements, the
C may nol exercise its option until it has paid the Participant a revenue share equal to a minimum of one hundred
forty percent {140%) of such Participant’s total paymcnt amount. Five of the Participation Agr have no mini
threshold payment. Once this mimimum threshold ix met, the Company may exercise its option by delivering written
notice (o a Participant of its intent to exercise the option, along with repayment terms of the amount funded, which may
be paid, in the Company’s sole discretion, in one lump sum or i four (4) equal quarterly payments. IT the Company does
nol make such quarterly payments timely for any quarter, then the Company shall pay the prorated Revenue Share
amount, retroactive on the entire remaining balance owed, that would have been eamed duning such guarter until the
defaull payments have been made and the payment schedule is no longer in default. See below a summary of the
Participation Agreements:

Buy-back  Buy-back
Minlmam  Premium  Premiam

Agreement Date of Amount Exercise Revenue FPaymemi %o pre-18 %% post 1B
L] Funding Funded Warranis Term Price Shary Threshodd s s,
I Apail 13,2000 5 100,000 3750 SYean % 60 1500 5 - 0% T
2 Apnl 13, 2030 [ 5625 3 Yeans B0 2250 - A0t £l
3 Apnl 13, 2020 1540, 0y 34625 3 Y¥cars .60 1250 - a0t Ll
4 May 7. 2020 250,000 9373 5 Yoan S.60 37500 - Al 40
& Jane |, 2000 275,100 10313 5 Years LE 4,125 #2500 A% Sire
6 June 3, 2020 225,000 243 5 Yean W80 3378 47,500 40 500
T ey 20 B, 100 3750 3 Years 480 1.50¢m% 1, My 4ot Sore
B Auwg M, 20 125, ) 4685 5 Yearn .60 1LETE 17500 a0t L1129
8 Sepr 14, 2020 1540, ) 5635 5 Years .60 22500 A5, DKy a0t LY
10 Sept15. M0 540,00 LAY 5 Yean .60 0.750m% 15,0400 A0 L2
Il Septlf, 2020 20,000 LETS 3 Yean .60 0750 15,000 40 507
12 Sept2S, 2020 3040, 00001 5625 3 Yean .60 4,500 200, DM A0 507
I3 Ot &, 2020 5000, 1) 15750 § Yeans .60 T.50RG (Bl Ay 4P
14 Ol 4, 2030 10, (51 3750 3 Yean a0 .50 40,0000 a0 e
13 Ol &, 2020 250,000 9375 3 Yeans .60 3750 - A0t Ll
& Ot @, 2020 0,000 LETS 3 Yeans .60 0,750 15,0000 a0 40re
1T D, D6, 2020 10, 35 S Yeans R 0,15 17,000 a0te e
I8 Jam 22,2021 0,000 L5005 Years 1.0 0.0600r 12,000 At S0
19 Jam 25, 2021 ) 1500 3 ¥ears i1.20 Q,600r% 12,000 Ao, L1109
20 Jam 27,2021 25,00 915 5 Yeans .20 0.375% 12,0000 Aot LY
2 May 1420210 45 ) 168X 3 Yeans 1840 0678 13,500 a0k, LY
& 2G5 00 106,315 44775 §  GR4.000
s el —m |

Certain of the Panicipation Agreemenis are owned by related parties. Panticipation Agreements numbers 8, 14, and 19
totaling $265,000 are owned by HEP Investments, Participation Agreement 21 in the amount of 545,000 is owned by
MKY MTS LLC an entity controlled by the owners of HEP Investments, and Participation Agreement 13 in the amount
of $500,000 is owned by an invesiment company owned by a significani shareholder Mark Sirome (“Strome”™),
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NOTE 10 - STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Recapitalization - Reverse Stock Split

On May 27, 2021, the Company filed a cenificate of amendment 1o 115 anticles of incorporation with the Secretary of
State of the State of Nevada (the “Certificate of Amendment”) to (1) effectuate a reverse stock split (the “Reverse Stock
Sphit™) of its issued and outstanding shares of common stock and treasury shares on a |-for-80 basis and (1) decrease the
number of total authorized shares of common stock of the Company from 1, 200,000,000 1o 1 50,000,000 shares,

As of the Effective Time, every 80 shares of issued and outstanding commaon stock were converted into one share of
common stock. No fractional shares were issued in connection with the Reverse Stock Split. Instead, a holder of record
of old commeon stock as of immediately prior to the Effective Time who would otherwise have been entitled to a fraction
of a share was entitled to receive cash in licu thereof.

The Company's transfer agent, Issuer Direct Corporation acted as the exchange agent for the Reverse Stock Spliv. The
Reverse Stock Split did not alter the par value of the Company's commaon stock or modify any voting rights or other
terms of the commeon Stock. In addition, pursuant to their terms, a propertionate adjusiment was made 10 the per share
exercise price and number of shares issuable under all of the Company’s outstanding stock options and warranis to
purchase shares of common Stock, and the number of shares nutherized and reserved for issuance pursuant to the
Company”s equity meentive plan will be reduced proportionately.

All issued and ouistanding common stock and per share amounts contained in the financial statements have been
retroactively adjusted 1o reflect this Reverse Stock Split for all periods presented. In addition, a proportionate adjustment
was made to the per share exercise price and the aumber of shares issuable upon the exercise of all outstanding stock
options, restricted stock units and warmants to purchase shares of common stock. A proportionate adjustnent was also
made 1o the number of shares reserved for ssuance pursuant to the Company™s equily incentive compensation plans to
reflect the Reverse Stock Split.

Board of Directors Fees

On October 12, 2021, our Board of Directors approved the Mon-Employee Dircctor Compensation Policy. Pursuant to
that policy, the Board granted 1o each of the four non-employvee directors $50.000 in value of common stock oplions. The
Company used the Black Scholes option pricing model to determine the number of shares that would derive a value of
£50,000 for cach non-employee director. The Black Scholes pricing model use the following assumptions: term of 10
vears; volatility 142.54%; annual rate of dividends 07%; discount rate 1.5%%. The model yielded an awand grant of 45,664
total options, 11,416 for cach of the four non-cmployee directors, In addition, the Board grunted Ms. Comell a pro rata
number of options for her tenure from February 2, 2021, through Cetober 11, 2021: a grant of 7,660 shares valued at
533,549 using the same Black Scholes assumptions.

Cin July 28, 2022, our Board of Directors awarded options pursuant to the Non-Employvee Director Compensation Policy.
The Board granted to each of the three non-emplovee directors $50,000 in value of common stock options. The Company
used the Black Scholes option pricing model to determine the number of shares that would derive a value of 50,000 for
cach non-employee director. The Black Scholes pricing model used the following assumptions: term of 531 years;
volatility 120.99%; annual rate of dividends 0%%; discount rate 2.69%. The model yielded an award grant of 47,391 1al
options, 15,797 for each of the three non-cmployee directors,

On December 16, 2022, our Board of Directors awarded oplions 1o each of the three non-employee direciors of $10,000
in value of common stock options. The Company used the Black Scholes option pricing model 1o determine the number
of shares that would derive a value of S10,000 for cach non-ecmployee director. The Black Scholes pricing model used
the following assumplions: term of § years; volatility 116.42%; annual rate of dividends 0%, discount rate 3.61%. The
model yielded an award grant of 12,732 total options, 4,244 for each of the three non-employee directors.

O December 19, 2022, our Board of Dircctors appointed Ms. Alison Cornell as lead independent director, [n recognition
of that appointment the Board of Directors awarded 1o Ms. Comell $300,000 in value of commen stock options. The
Company used the Black Scholes eption pricing model to determine the number of shares that would derive a value of
$300.000 for the lead independent dircetor. The Black Scholes pricing model used the following assumpiions: term of 5
years; volanlity 116.47%; annual rate of dividends 0% discount rate 3.70%. The model yielded an award grant of
139,444 1otal options.

The Company recorded directors” fees of 81,155,722 and $710.481 (as adjusted) for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively, representing the cash fees paid or accrued and the expense associated with the common
stock options deseribed above.
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Stock Based Compensation

On January 1, 2021, in coanection with his appointment as the Company’s Chicf Financial Officer, Mr. Marchiando
received a stock option award isseed pursuant 1o the 2019 Plan to purchase 162,500 shares of the Company’s commn
stock, with an exercise price of $11.20 per share. Vesting of these oplions shall be as follows: 37500 shares vested
immediately upon grant of the option awand, and 15,625 shares will vest on each 6 month anniversary of January 1, 2021,

The Company, on June 15, 2021, issued 5,000 shares of unregistered common siosck 1o CorProminence, LLC (db/a
COREir) for services in accordance with the consulting agreement between COREir and the Compuny (Sce “Nore 1 «
Conmmitments and Contingencies"), The shares were valued at the market price on June 15, 2021, $4.4% per share for a
total expense of 822,400, On October 15, 2021, the Company, per its consulting agreement with CorProminence, LLC
{dba COREir), issued an additional 2,500 shares of common stock to CorProminence, LLC. The shares were valued on
October 15, 2021, at $4.15 per share for a total expense in the aggregate of $10,375.

On October 21, 2021, the Board of directors granted options under its 2021 oquity incentive plan (the “2021 Plan™) to
purchase 924,000 sharcs of commen stock W several directors and officers of the Company. The options have a term of
ten years and 260,000 shares granted 1o board members vest over one vear, and the 664,000 shares granted 10 the officers
vest over three years. The options were valued at 53,476,392 using the Black Scholes pricing model relyving on the
following assumptions: volatility 141.38%; annual rate of dividends 0%%; discount rate 1.68%.

On February 22, 2022, the Board of dircctors granted opfions under its 2021 equity incentive plan (the “2021 Plan") to
purchase 172,500 shares of common stock to cortain employees of the Company. The options have a term of ten years
and vest over three years, The options were valued at $493,536 using the Black Scholes pricing model relying on the
following assumptions: simplificd term of 575 years; volatility 130.18%; annual rate of dividends 075, discount rate
I.88%.

On August 29, 2022, the Board of directors granted options under its 2021 equity incentive plan (the “2021 Plan”) to
purchase 173,000 shares of commaon stock to certain employees of the Company, The options have a term of ten years
and wvest over three years, The eptions were valued at $590,896 using the Black Scholes pricing model relying on the
following assumptions: simplificd term of 5.75 yeurs; volatility 121.19%; annual rate of dividends 0%; discount rate
3125%.

Steck Issuances

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company wssued 139,664 shares for proceeds of 51,514,969 to mvesiors
in private placements. In addition, during this same period, a reloted panty purchased 4,464 shares of the Company's
commeon stock at $11.20 per share for proceeds of $50,000.

Cm June 2, 2021, the Company completed itz public offering of commeon stock and common stock warrants. The
Company issued 2,760,000 units at $5.00 (each unit consisting of one share of the Company’s common stock and one
warranl (“registered warrani”} with an exercise price $5.50 per share) for gross proceeds of $13,504.240, and net
proceeds of $12.181.602 after related underwriting and other costs of $1,622,638,

On July 2, 2021, the underwriter of the June 2021 Offering exercised its overallotment option and purchased an
additionsl 150,000 shares of the Company”s common stock at $4.99 per share for gross proceeds of $748,500, and net
proceeds of 673,159 after related underwriting and other costs of $75,191,

Sitock Warranis Exercised

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, warrants (o purchase 139,100 shares of the Company’s comman
stock were exercised on a “cashless” basis resulting in the issuance of 54,361 shares of common stock.

In Seplember 2021, two groups of the Company’s registered warrants wene exercised resulting in the Company

issuing 198,503 shares of common stock. The exercise price of the registered warrants was §5.50 per share, resulting in
gross cash proceeds to the Company of $1,081,767,
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Sale of Common Stock Warrants

During the twelve months ending December 31, 2021, and in connection with the Participation Agreements (see “Nore §
- Deferred R&D Obligation - Participation Agreementz™), the Company sold warrants to purchase 5.626 shares of
commaon stock for 855,697, The warrants were valied bazed on the Black Scholes pricing model relving on the following
assumplions: volatility 129.13% 1o 140.20%; annual rate of dividends 0% discount rate 0.41% 10 0.87%.

O June 2, 2021, the Company completed iis public offering of common siock and warranis. As pari of the transaciion,
the Company sold 414,000 warrants (“registered warranis™) with an exercise price of $5.50 per share, from the
overallotment option that was excrciscd by the underwriter for $4,140. Additionally, the Company issucd the underwriter
8% of the number of shares of common stock i the offering in 220,800 unregistered warrants for shares of common
stock, for an aggregale price 1o the Company of $100. These warranis are exercisable 180 days aller the oflering date and
expire five vears after the first day they are exercisable. The wamants were valued at $946.675 based on the Black
Scholes pricing model relying on the following assumptions: volatility 132.46%; annual rate of dividends 0%; discount
rate 0.80%. This was recognized by the company as an underwriting cost and was accounted for as an offset 1o funds
raised.

2021 Equity Incentive Plan

O October 12, 2021, after approval from the stockholders at the Company®s 2021 annual meeting of stockhelders, the
Company adopted the 2021 Plan for the purpose of enhancing the Company™s ability (o altract and retain highly qualified
directors, officers, key cmployees and other persons and to motivate such persons to improve the business results and
camings of the Company by providing an opporiunity to acquire or increase a dircet propriceary interest in the operations
and future success of the Company. The 2021 Plan is administered by the compensation committee of the Board who
will, amongst other dutics, have full power and authority to take all actions and to make all determinations required or
provided for under the 2021 Plan. Pursuant to the 2021 Plan, the Company may grant options, share appreciation rights,
restricled shares, restricted share units, unrestricted shares and dividend equivalent rights. The 2021 Plan has a duration
of 10 years.

Subject to adjustment as described in the 2021 Plan, the aggregate number of shares of common stock available for
issuance under the 2021 Plan is initially set at 1,000,000 sharcs: this number is sutomatically increased cach January st
by an amount equal to 5% of the number of common stock shares outstanding at that date. As of December 31, 2022,
1,327,407 options have been issued under the 2021 Plan, and 143,576 shares remained available for issuance.

2019 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan

Prior to the adoption of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, the Company maintained a 2019 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive
Plan (the 2019 Plan”). Following the approval by the sharcholders of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, no additional
awards have been or will be made under the 2019 Plan. As of December 31, 2022, 781,250 stock options had been issued
under the 2019 Plan with terms between 5 vears and 10 years, of which 362,300 remained outstanding.

Common Stock Options
A summary of the status of the Company’s options issued under the Company's equity incentive plans is presented

below. As of December 31, 2022 there is no intrmsic value in any of the Company s oulstanding options as the market
price of the Company’s commaon stock is in all cases lower than the exercise price of options.

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Number of  Exercise  Numberof  Exercise
Options Price Options Price

Outstanding. beginning of year 1.721.074 § 738 606250 § 9467
Forfeited.. . (767,250) 681 (37,500} 11.84
736,083 373 1L152.3M 632

1689907 § 6.05 1721074 § 7.38
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Options outstanding and exercisable by price range as of December 31, 2022 were as follows:

Ouitstanding Options Exercisable Options

Average Weighted Weighted

Range of Remaining Range of Average

Exercise Contractual Exercise Exercise

Price Number Life in Years Price Number Price

§ 200299 343,192 997 & 2.00-2.99 343,192 § 2.76
3.00-3.99 220,391 .65 3.00-3.99 54,850 387
S 400499 53,324 BI85 4.00-499 5334 8 448
5.00-5.99 T10.500 589 5.00-599 443,062 5.50
B.00-8,99 6.250 2.54 £.00-8,99 7813 880
G.00-9.99 25 000 263 9.00-9.99 25,000 960
11.00-11.9% 162,500 T80 11.06-11.99 84375 1120
12.00-12.99 168.750 2.14  12.00-12.99 168,750 12.80
1.689.907 831 L8066 8 6.4

As of December 31, 2022, 1o1al compensation cost related o non-vested awards not yet recogmized 13 $1,061,925; and the
weighted-average period over which it is expected to be recognized is 0.79 years,

Common Stock Warrants - Unregistered

A summary of the status of the Company”s unregistered warrants is presented below,

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of  Exercise  Numberof  Exercise
Warrants Price ‘Warrants Price
Outstanding, beginning of year 2553635 % T.57 2502291 8 T.67
Issued...... . - 226,426 5.64
Exercised - - (139,099) 641
Cancelled - - - -
Expired.... . (95],437) 7.10 (35.983) 6.52
Outstanding. end of period..........ccccncnmmsmmmoe: LG02,198 8 785 2553635 S 71.57

Unregistered warrants outstanding and exercisable by price range as of December 31, 2022 were as follows:

Outstanding Warrants Exercisable Warrants
Average Weighted
Remaining Weighted
Contractual Exercise Average
Range of Number Life in Years Price Number Exercise Price

5 5.00-5.99 220,800 a2 5 5.00-5.99 220,800 5.50
6,00-6,99 156,875 2.50 6,00-6,99 156,875 640
£.00-8.99 950,054 0.79 B.040-8.99 950,084 804
2.00-9.99 231,938 2.69 9.00-9.99 231,938 9.60
OL00- 10,99 1,688 337 100K 10,599 1,688 140
1L.00-11.99 35813 1.00 F1.00-11.99 35813 11.20
14.00-14.99 5,000 1.99 14.00-14.99 3,000 14.40
1,602,198 161 1,602,198 % 7.85
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Common Stock Warrants - Registered
A summary of the status of the Company s registered warrants 13 presented below:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Weighted Weighted
Numberof  Average  Numberof  Average
HRegistered  Exercise  Registered  Exercise

Warrants Price Warrants Price
Outstanding. beginning of ¥ear.......c.mmamas 2913,497 § 5.50 - 8 -
Issued . - 3174000 5.50
Exercised ..., . i w (19%,503) 5.50
Cancelled - - - -
Expired.... = -

Outstanding. end of period. 2975497 5 550 2975497 § 5.50

Registered warrants outstanding and exercisable by price range as of December 31, 2022, were as follows:

Outstanding Registered Warrants Exercisable Registered Warranis
Average Weighted Welghted
Remaining Contractual Exercise Average
Exercise Price Number Life in Years Price Number Exercise Price
5 5.50 2975497 1.5 § 5.50 2975497 5.50

NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Employment Agreemenis

At December 31, 2022, the Company had compensation agreements with its President / Chief Exceutive Officer. and
Chief Financial Officer.

Corporate Advisory Agreement

In August 2021, the Company entered info an agreement with an Invesiment Opporfunity Provider (IOP). The 10F has
been engaged as an exclusive financial advizor in connection with a proposed transaction invelving the creation of a
ZIVO Phowbiorcactor Facility (“Phase 17) and additional Photobiorcactor Facilities (“Phase 37). The Company has
agreed to pay the 10P, upon the completion of Phase 1, a foe of 6% of the aggregate value of the transaction (50% in
cash, and 50 in equity) and upon the completion of Phase 3, a fee of 3% of the aggregate value of the transaction in
cash. As of December 31, 2022, in connection with this agreement, no suceessful transactions have taken place.

Investor / Public Relations

On Febroary 15, 2021, the Company signed a consulting agreement with CorProminence, LLC (dba COREir) 1o provide
us with investor relations and public relations services, The COREir agreement includes a provision to issue to COREir
on the four (4) month anniversary of the effective date, or as soon thereafter as is practically possible, 10,000 authorized
restricted shares of common stock of the Company, of which 5.000 shares shall vest immediately upon receipt, 2,500
shall vest on the eight (%) month anniversary of the coniract effective date and 2,500 shares shall vest on the twelve (12)
month anniversary of the effective date of the COREir agreement. In addition, the agreement requires the Company to
pay COREir $15,000 per month, plus out of pocket expenses, for their consuliing services.

Om October 15, 2021, the Company, per its consulting agreement with CorProminence, LLC (dba COREr), issued 2,500
shares of common stock to CorProminence, LLC. The shares were valued on October 15, 2021, at $4.15 per share for a
total expense in the aggregate of $10.375. On October 31, 2021, the Company informed CorProminence LLC that it was
immediately terminating the consulting agreement. Under the termination clause of the agreement, the Company may be
liable for an additienal 2,500 shares 10 be issued o CorProminence,




Legal Contingencies

On April 13, 2022, AEGLE Pariners, 2 LLC (“AEGLE") initiated an arbitration in Michigan against the Company with
the American Arbitration Association. AEGLE assened claims related to a certain Supply Chain Consulting Agreement
entered inlo between AEGLE and the Company in 2009 (as amended from time 1o time, the “Agreement”), and a
disagreement belween AEGLE and the Company regarding whether AEGLE 15 entitled 10 payment of cerlain fees and
warrants pursuant to the Agreement. AEGLE's complaint secks, among other things, three times the payment of such
alleged fees and warranis and recovery of AEGLE's cosis and expenses. We believe that the claims made by AEGLE in
iis complaini are withoul merit and we imiend to vigorously defend ourselves against them. Arbiiration m thes matier 15
scheduled to begin in April 2023

We may become a party to litigation in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management. there are no legal
matters invelving us that would have a material adverse effect upon our financial condition, results of operation or cash
flows.

NOTE 12 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Loan Pavable - Related Party

Sec “Nove 6 - Loan Pavable, Related Parttes” for disclosure of loans payable to related parties.

Employment Agreement

See “Nete 1] - Commritments and Contingencites™ for disclosure of the employment agreements with the Chief Executive
Officer and current and Chicf Financial Officer.

Building Lease

In January 2022 the Company terminated its agreement for the rental of its office space from M&M Keego Center LLC,
an entity conirolled by an immediate family member of a principal sharcholder.

Stock Issuances

On June 2, 2021, the Company completed its public offertng of units consisting of commeon stock and warrants. Two of
the Company’s directors participated in the offering; Chnis Maggiore purchased 100,000 units, and Alison Comell
purchased 15,000 units,

NOTE 13 - INCOME TAXES

The following table presents the components of net loss before income taxes:

Years Ended December 31,

202z 2021
Domestic § (8,745.293) § (B.755.881)
{Loss) before provision fOT INCOMEE LENES .ou.ci i e iamsss s cassrsss s s s s amsassas cassesssianissss (8.745.293)  (8.735.881)

There was no income tax for the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, The Company s tax expense
differs from the “statulory™ tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2022, and 2021 as noted below:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Income tax (benefit) / Expense at federal statutory rate. - %1,836,512) 2007 S(1.83K,735) 21.0%
Apportioned state income taxes.., (131.407) 1.5% . 0.0%%
Stock based compensation., 297,653 (L3 (104,600 1.2%
Rate change.....c..ocimisions (31,150) 0.3% (135,284 L6%
Return to prlwl'u'm adjustmaents ... {1.515) (U - LI
Other non-deductible items....., . .0 121,652) 0.2%
Change in valuation allowance w _ 1,702,961 (195 2,103,312 {24.0)%
Total inconme X PROVISION ...c..ic e st 9 = e S - 0.0%s




Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of (2) temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and
lLiabilities for financial repoming purpeses and the amounts used for income tax purposes, and (b) operating losses and 1ax
credit carry forwards, The tax effects of significant items comprising the Company s deferred taxes were as follows:

For the Years Eaded
December 31,
02z 021
Delerred tax assets'{ Habilities)
Federal net operating loss carryforwards e & 7606833 8 6,661,795
State net operating loss corryforwands ... 74,353
Stock based compensation 2738159 2502 .356
Section 174 research and experimental expenditures - 374926 (73,521)
Onlver deferred tax assels (liabilitics) {180}
Total deferred tax assets ... 510,794,091 S 9091130
Valuation allowance ... e _(IOTH4.091)  (2.091,130)
Total deferred income taxes 5 = 5 -

During 2022, immaienal errors were weniified in deferred taxes related 1o cerlain federal and state net operating losses
{NOLs). The 2021 amounts in the tables above have been adjusted which resulted in the reduction of the federal net
operating loss carryforwards, the state net operating loss carryforwards, stock-based compensation, and Scction 174
research and experimental expenditures as of December 31, 2021 within gross deferred tax assets as previously disclosed
by approximately $11.0 million, $3.1 million, $400.000, and $100.000, respectively, with a corresponding decrease in the
valuation allowance of $14.6 million, Comresponding adjustments wiere made to the rate reconciliation table including an
adjustment 1o the apportioned stale income taxes by approximately $(400,000) for the year ended December 31, 2021,

ASC 740 Jneonne Taves requires that the tax benefit of net operating losses (“NOLs"), temporary differences and credit
carryforwarnds be recorded as an asset 1o the extent thal management assesses that realization is “more likely than not.™
Realization of the future tax benefits is dependent on the Company’s ability to generate sufficient taxable income within
the carryforward period. Management believes that realization of the deferred tax assets arising from the above-
mentioned future tax benefits from operating loss carryforwards is currently not more likely than not and, accordingly,
has provided a wvaluation allowance. The valuation allowance increased by 51.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 and mercased by 32,1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021 the Company’s deferred tax assct contains the 1ax effect of approximately $36.2
million and $31.7 million of Federal KOLs, respectively. The Federal NOLS' generated prior to December 31, 2017
were wiitlen ofl of the deferred tax assel, while NOLs generated subsequent to this date remain. Under the new Tax Cuts
and Jobs Act. all Federal NOLs incurred after December 31, 2017 are carmed forward indefinitely for Federal tax

purpases.

Net Operating Net Operating
Lasses Lasses
recorded as Federal  recorded as State
deferred tax assel deflerred tax assel
e § - 8 .

2023 :hmugh 2037..
Total expining npmlmg 1nsscs (lnc‘urrtd pﬂDl' w I)c:mﬂxr 31 Eﬂl?}
Nen-cxpmng apcmmg losses (incurred after December 31, 2017)

In the ordinary course of its business the Company incurs costs that, for tax purposes, may be gualified research
expenditures within the meaning of IRC Code Sec. 41 and arc, therefore, may be eligible for the Increasing Rescarch
Activities credil under IRC Code Sec. 41. The Company has nol claimed a credit pursuant to IRC Code Sec. 41 on its
federal retums. i.e. no deferred tax asset on the books.

36,223.016 1.351.870
e & 36223006 S 1,351,870

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has no uncertain tax positions. It is the Company's policy to account for inferest
and penaltics related 1o uncertain tax positions as interest expense and general and sdministrative expense, respectively in
its statements of operations. No interest or penaltics have been recorded related to the uncerain tax positions,

It is not expected that there will be a significant change in uncertain tax positions in the next 12 months, The Company is
subject to LLS. federal and state income tax as well as to income tax in multiple state jurisdictions. In the normal course
of busincss, the Company is subject 1o examination by tax authonties. As of the date of the financial statements, there are
no fax examinations in progress. The statuie of limitations for tax years ended after December 31, 2018, are open for
federal and state tax purposes.
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The 2007 Tax Act amended Section 174 of the Intemal Revenue Code which alfects the Federal wax treatment of research
und experimental (R&E) expendimres. Preceding this law change, R&E expenditures were expensed as incurred for
Federal Income Tax purposcs. In taxable years beginning after December 31, 2021, R&E expenditures must be
capitalized and amonized over 5 vears for expenditures incurred in the United States, of 15 vears for expenditures
meurred outside the United States. Due 1o the nature of the Company’s operations, R&E expenditures are a significant
portion of total expenditures. The Company calculated an estimated amount for income tax provision purposcs based on
guidance available 1o determing the capitalized amount.

NOTE 14 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
2021 Man Evergreen Provision

Under the 2021 Plan, the shares reserved antomatically increase on January Ist of cach year, for a period of not more
than ten years from the daie the 2020 Plan 13 approved by the stockholders of the Company, commencing on January 1,
2022, and ending on (and including) January 1, 2029, by an amount cqual to 5% of the shares of common stock
outstanding as of December 31st of the preceding calendar year, Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board of Dircctors
may act prior (o January 15t of a given year 1o provide that there will be no January 15t increase in the share reserve for
such year or that the increase in the share reserve for such vear will be a lesser number of shares of common stock than
would otherwise occur pursuant to the preceding sentence. On January 1, 2023, 470,983 shares were added to the 2021
Plan as a resuli of the evergreen provision.

Nasdaq Complisnce

Om November 22, 2022, the Company received written notice from Nasdag stating that the Company no lenger complied
with the minimum stockholders’ equity requirement under Nasdaq Listing Rule $530(b)( 1} for continued listing on The
Nasdag Capital Market. On January 6. 2023, the Company subrmitied its compliance plan 1o Nasdag,

Om January 11, 2023, Nasdag notified the Company that it had determined to grant the Company an extension until May
22, 2023 to regain compliance. There can be no assurance thal the Company will be successful in implementing
its plan 10 regain compliance with the minimum stockholders” equity requiremant.

Short Term Loan

On Febroary 14, 2023, the Company entered into a short unsecured loan agreement to finance a portion of the
Company's directors’ and officers’, and employment practices liability insurance premiums. The nole in the amouni of
S605.600 carmies o 8.4% annual percentage rate and will be paid down in nine equal monthly payments of 569,666
beginning on March 10, 2023,
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